


ELKO CI'l HALL, 1751 COLLE"™ “VENUE,I K® ~NEVA™*

CITY OF ELKO
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
St CIAL MEETING
4:00 P.M., PS.T., TUESDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2( 3

L

CALL TO ORDER

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted

for this

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF

date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a mattc -aised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included  a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NO BE TAKEN

I. APPROPRIATIONS

A.

12/18/2018

Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Review and possible approval of Print ‘N Copy Warrants, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Review and possible approval of Great Basin Engineering Warrants, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Review, consideration, and possible issuance of final acceptance for the WRF
Emergency Diesel Generator (Equipment), and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Smith Power Products Inc. (Smith) was awarded this bid with a scheduled delivery
date of July 2, 2018. The generator arrived on site September 24, 2018.

The generator was delayed in part due to manufacturl ; of the generator.
Additionally, and to a greater degree, the generator was delayed when the
subcontractor Koontz-Wagner, who was tasked with building the weatherproof
enclosure and fuel tank, went out of business. This then resulted in the generator
being rerouted and rush shipped to the Midwest for a rush | ild of the enclosure,
fuel tank, and appurtenances, then rush shipped back to Elko, all at Smith’s
expense.

City Council Agenda 1



When the unit arrived, the enclosure v. ed from the original design specs which
the concrete pad had been designed around. To rectify this  tter, Smith agreed to
pay for an enlarged concrete pad. This « ange resulted ina  tional delays.

The generator is currently on site and « erational. Smith has agreed to reimburse
the City for the additional concrete pad expense (24,200.00) as well as LD’s in the
amount of $29,175.00 (10% of the equipment cost as limited by the contract) to be
deducted from their invoice. RL

II. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.

Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally . prove Final Plat No.
11-18, filed by Parrado Partners LP., for the development ot a subdivision entitled
Great Basin Estates, Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately
9.650 acres of property into 38 lots for residential development within the R (Single
Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Subject property is located generally n theast of Flagstor Drive between Opal
Drive anc ‘'larkson Drive (APN 001-633-030). Preliminary Plat was recommended
to Counc to conditionally approve by Planning Commiss n May 3, 2016 and
conditionally approved by Council M s 24, 2016. The | nning Commission
considered this item on September 6, 2018, and took action to forward a
recommendation to Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 11-18. CL

III. NEW BUSINESS

A.

12/18/2018

Review and consideration of a request from Mr. Rob Fitzgerald of Surebrec
Holdings, LLC for a Special Reimbursement Agreement as defined in City Code
9-1-35 (E), for reimbursement of a sewer main and boring costs within the I-80
Right of Way, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Mr. Fitzgerald is the owner of a parcel of land and wishes to develop. In order to
do so, Mr. Fitzgerald needs to install sewer service. Curren / there is not a viable
means of discharging sewer from the site. In order to do so, a sewer main would
need to be installed under I-80 or a sew: lift station would need to be installed.

Staff vastly prefers a gravity sewer main under 1-80 when ¢ 1pared to a lift station
alternative. The sewer main bore is proposed to be located a low point where it
could be used by multiple parcels. RL

Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for
Revocable Permit No. 5-18, filed by Elite Storage & R.V., LLC. to occupy a portion
of 12" Street right-of-way to accommodate a sign, and matte  related thereto. FOR
POSSIBI ' ACTION

City Council Agenda 2



Elite Storage & R.V. LLC. is currently 1der construction  their storage units at
the intersection of 12" Street and Opal | ive. If approved, is will be the location
of their sign for the business. CL

IV.  RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

A.

First reading of Ordinance No. 838, an ordinance approvir an amendment to the
development agreement between the City of Elko, Nevada, a municipal corporation
and political subdivision of the State of Nevada (“City”), ¢  Copper Trails LLC,
a Nevada limited liability company (“Owner”™), specificall > add Phase 2 of the
Copper Trails subdivision and impose a bottom of finished floor elevation for all
future placement of principal building sup-gradient of the Eight-Mile drainage
easement of two feet higher than the back of curb elevation  measured at the front
lot line adjacent to the street of record, and to direct Staff to+  the matter for second
reading, | blic hearing and possible adoption, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Pursuant to N.R.S. 278.0205 and Sectic 3-2-26(F) of the ( Code, Council may
amend or cancel binding development agreements by mutu  onsent of the parties
to the agreement or their successors in interest if it finds th: e amendment to the
agreement is consistent with the Master Plan. The amendment shall be approved by
adoption of an ordinance. In this instance, the owner has requested the City amend
the approved development agreement and Staff is in agreer nat. SAW

V. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

A.

12/18/2018

Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a peti Hn for the vacation of
5’ of the existing 10’ public utility and drainage easement . ng the southwesterly
lot line, parcel referred to as APN 001-61J-028, filed by Ko nia Construction and
processed as Vacation No. 4-18, and matters related ther >. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

The applicant has requested a vacation of half of the existing easement due to the
irregularity of the parcel shape and setbacks requirements. '_ _

Consideration of a request from Ms. C. ie Tregidga to hc  the “Relay for Life”
Event in the Elko Main City Park (area 10) on May 18" ar 19", 2019, including
the extension of the curfew from 11:00 P.M. on May 18" until 8:00 A.M. on May
19" and authorization to park one (1) 'V Trailer overni t, and matter related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

A letter from Callie Tregidga, Director of Operations, Hiltc  Sarden Inn, has been
placed in your packet for your review. CC

Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 60-day Temporary Retail Liquor License
and issue a Regular Retail Liquor License. to Sartini Gaming LC/Sean T. Higgins
DBA Gold Bar, located at 3600 West 1 1ho Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City Council Agenda 3



VI.  5:30 P.M. PU LIC HEARINGS

A.

First reading for Ordinance 837, an Amendment to Title 4, Chapter 9 of the Elko
City Code entitled “Prostitution,” and matters related thereto.” FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Council initiated Staff to make changes to City Code Title 4, Chapter 9,
“Prostitution,” as well as to complete a business impact statement on October 23,
2018. On December 11, 2018 council determined there was a direct and significant
impact to businesses due to the proposed rule fee structure (pursuant to NRS
237.080). Furthermore, council approved the business impact statement subject to
the proposed fee structure being changed to $5000 per applicant for the application,
$6500 for a new license, and $6500 for an annual renewal of the brothel license.
Today is the first reading of the ordin. ce. If council approves first reading, the
next meeting will include the second reading of the ordinance as well as the
resolution outlining the revised fee structure. BR

Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 30-18, a
resolution of the Elko City Council adopting a change in zoning district boundaries
from C- General Commercial and GI- General Industrial to R-Single Family and
Multiple Family Residential approximately .287 acres of property located generally
north of the intersection of 9" Street and River Street, filed by Donald Carlson and
Valvet Carlson, and processed as Rezone No. 7-18, and matters related thereto.
FOR PO IBLE ACTION

The Planning Commission considered the subject zone change request on
December 4, 2018 and took action to forward a recommendation to City Council to
adopt a resolution which conditionally : proves Rezone No. 7-18. CL

VII. REPORTS

TOZZrA-TIOTENON®

12/18/2018

Mayor an City Council

City Manager

Assistant City Manager
Utilities Director

Public Works

Airport Manager

City Atorney

Fire Chief

Police Chief

City Clerk

City Planner

Developn  t Manager
Administ  ve Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director
Civil Engineer

Building Official

City Council Agenda 4




COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

NOTE: The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or o 2r Presiding Officer of the City Council
reserves the right to change the order of e agenda, and if the agenda has not been
completed, to recess the meeting and ¢« tinue on another specified date and time.
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an
item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURN] ENT

Curtis Calder
City Manager

12/18/2018 City Council Agenda 5



Action Item [.D.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible issuance of final acceptance for the WRF
Emergency Diesel Generator (Equipment), and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 Special Session
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: 7 Minutes

Background Information: Smith Power Products Inc. (Smith) was awarded this bid
with a scheduled delivery date of July 2, 2018. The generator arrived on site
September 24, 2018.

The generator was delayed in part due to manufacturing of the generator.
Additionally, and to a greater degree, the generator was delayed when the
subcontractor Koontz-Wagner, who was tasked with building the weatherproof
enclosure and fuel tank, went out of business. This then resulted in the generator
being rerouted and rush shipped to the Midwest for a rush build of the enclosure,
fuel tank, and appurtenances, then rush shipped back to Elko, all at Smith’s
expense.

When the unit arrived, the enclosure varied from the original design specs which the
concrete pad had been designed around. To rectify this matter, Smith agreed to pay
for an enlarged concrete pad. This change resulted in additional delays.

The generator is currently on site and operational. Smith has agreed to reimburse
the City for the additional concrete pad expense (24,200.00) as well as L.LD’s in the
amount of $29,175.00 (10% of the equipment cost as limited by the contract) to be
deducted from their invoice. RL

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: $291,750. (minus 24,200. for additional concrete and
minus $29,175. in LD’s)
Budget amount available: $500,000.00
Fund name: WRF

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Letter from Smith Power Products, Inc. and final
invoice

Created on 11/29/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 2



Action Item 1.D.
9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council

10. Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
1. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Council Agenda Distribution: Aaron Wahlquist, Branch Manager
awahlquist@ smithppi.com

Created on 11/29/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 2 of 2




Agenda Item

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
10. Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
1. Committee/Other Agency Review:
12. Council Action:
13. Council Agenda Distribution: Aaron Wahlquist, Branch Manager
awahlguisttosmithppi.com
Created on 11/29/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet

Page 2 of 2




SO! ™ BY: DATE:
M ' ' H SMITH POWER PRODUCTS INC 11/23/2018

POWER PRDDLUCTS INC 3065 West California Ave.

P.0. Box 27527 Page 1
Salt Lake City, UT 84127

Phone 801-415-5000 Fax 801-415-5700

CITY OF ELKO INVOICE 3065130
1751 COLLEGE CUSTOMER 013465 0000
ELKO, NV 898e1 CUST ORDER .

SST GOVERNMENT

SHIP TO ELKO WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY
013465 1600 SEWER TREATMENT
0000 PLANT ROAD
ELKO, NV 898061
UNIT SERIAL MODEL CUST ORDER # AMOUNT
000000025423 95020500622 MTU 18v20e06 DS1250 . 291,750.00

ELKO WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY

MTU 18V2000 DS1250kW GENERATOR

PLEASE PAY FROM THIS INVOICE.

PLEASE NOTE: 95% OF THE SALES TOTAL IS CURRENTLY DUE.
AT THE TIME OF STARTUP/COMPLETION OF SUBMITTALS THE REMAINING 5% IS DUE.

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

12/18/2018 291750.00

AGENT DAN DURHAM SuB TOTAL 291,750.00

SIGNATURE NV STATE

TERMS ELKO CO

NET 30

2% PER MONTH (24% PER ANNUM) TOTAL USD 291,750.0

INTEREST CHARGED ON OVERDUE ACCOUNTS




Ryan Limberg

From: Aaron Wahlquist <awahlquist@smithppi.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 28 2018 4:58 PM

To: Ryan Limberg; Justin Williams

Subject: FW: Generator Transfer

Good afiermoon Ryan,

After talking it over within our comipany we do accept moving forward with the full amount of the second
agreement (concrete addition e $24,200.00) and close out of liquidated damages at the agreed 10% (529,175.00). If the
city approves, we would accept these terms through payment of the final invoice amount minus the charges. If it helps we
could re-write the invoice to include the reductions. The final invoicing should look something like $291,750.00 -
$53,375.00 to a total of $238,375.00. We appreciate the help of the city group and contractors in keeping the progress
rolling through the project, and look forward to future projects with Elko City.

SMITH pOWER PRODUCTS, INC.

Aaron Wahlquist — Branch Manager Elko, NV
Dircct: 775-748-2602 Fax: 775-738-3689
www.smithpowerproducts.com



Agenda ltem ILLA.

o

10.
1.
12.
13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally approve Final Plat
No. 11-18, filed by Parrado Partners LP., for the development of a subdivision entitled
Great Basin Estates, Phase 3 involving the proposed division of approximately 9.650
acres of property into 38 lots for residential development within the R (Single Family
and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018
Agenda Category: UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Time Required: 1S Minutes

Background Information: Subject property is located generally northeast of Flagstone
Drive between Opal Drive and Clarkson Drive (APN 001-633-030). Preliminary Plat
was recommended to Council to conditionally approve by Planning Commission May
3, 2016 and conditionally approved by Council May 24, 2016. The Planning
Commission considered this item on September 6, 2018, and took action to forward a
recommendation to Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 11-18. CL

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Maps, P.C. action report, Staff reports and related
correspondence.

Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Final Plat No. 11-18 for the Great Basin
Estates, Phase 3 subdivision subject to the conditions as recommended by the
Planning Commission OR table item if Cease and Desist Order issued by NDEP is
still in effect.

Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission
Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Parrado Partners, LP
Robert Capps — roberteapps @ cappshomes.com
12257 Business Park Drive #1
Truckee, CA 96161

Created on 12/4/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1







edition Standard Specifications for Public Works. All Right —of-Way and utility
improvements are to be certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

10. An engineer’s estimate for the public improvements shall be provided prior to the
final plat being presented to the City Council to allow for finalization of the
required Performance Agreement.

11. Modify Planning Commission approval jurat to the 3™ day of May, 2016 prior to
City Council approval.

The Planning Commission’s {indings to support its recommendation are the Final Plat for Great
Basin Estates Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the subdivision proceedings in
accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code. The Final Plat is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of
the Master Plat. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the
preliminary plat application, the proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-20 through
3-3-27 (inclusive). The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in
conformance with Section 3-3-40 of City Code. The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement
plans in conformance with Section 3-3-41 of City Code. The plans have been approved by City
Staff. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the City and State agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-42 of City Code. The
Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with Section 3-3-43
of City Code. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agrecment to conform
to Section 3-3-44 of City Code. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance
Guarantee as stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of
City Code. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the
preliminary plat application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-
5(E), 3-2-5(G) and 3-2-17 of City Code. The proposed development is in conformance with
Section 3-8 of City Code. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management.

s '
f_/ é'l} IL [ /KLLL-l }( <
Cathy Lauglm. City}}lanner

Attest:

Shelby Archul\ct . Planning Technician

CC:  Applicant
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk






FINAL PLAT 11-18
Gireat Basin Estates Phase 3
APN.001-633-030

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBERS: 001-633-030

PARCEL SIZE: 9.650 acres Phase 3, final phase of the subdivision
EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density
EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NELGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
Northwest: River corridor / Undeveloped
Northeast: RMH- Residential Mobile Home / Developed
Southwest: Single Family Residential (R) / Developed
Southeast: Single Family Residential (R) and (RMH) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
e The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.

e The area abuts the second phase the Great Basin Estates Subdivision.
o The parcel is generally flat.
MASTER PLAN, COORDINATING PLANS, and CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are:

e City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

e City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

e City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

e City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

e City of Elko Zoning — Chapter 3 Subdivisions

e City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-3 General Provisions

e City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts

e City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-5(E) Single-Family Residential District

e City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback And
Height Schedule For Principal Buildings

e City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations

e City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-8 FFlood Plain Management

BACKGROU™M™ 'NFORMATION

The Final Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 1B was recorded on June 29, 2017.

2. The Final Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 2 was approved by City Council on August
14, 2018.

3. The Final Plat for Great Basin Estates Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

4. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City

Council on the Preliminary Plat on May 3, 2016.

—_—

Page 2 of 8




FINAL PLAYV 11-18
Great Basim Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

5. The City Council conditionally approved the Preliminary Plat at its meeting on May 24,
2016.

6. Phasing was shown on the preliminary plat.

7. Under the conditional approval for the preliminary plat, a modification of standards was
granted for all lot dimensions.

8. The subdivision is located on APN 001-633-030, shown as parcel E on Final Plat for
Phase 2.

9. The proposed subdivision consists of 38 lots with no additional phases.

10. The total subdivided area is approximately 9.650 acres in size.

I'1. The proposed density is 5.09 units per acre.

[2. Approximately 2.187 acres are offered for dedication for street development.

13. The area proposed for subdivision has been removed from the FEMA Special Flood
Hazard Area by a Letter of Map Revision submitted to and approved by FEMA as Case
No. 16-09-0367P with an eftective date of April 3, 2017.

4. The property is located oft Opal Drive and Clarkson Drive.

MACTER PLAN:
Land Use
I. Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat and the Master Plan.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation

2. Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with
review and approval of the Preliminary Plat. The Final Plat is in conformance with the
Preliminary Plat.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Transportation Component of the Master Plan.
ELK('\ DEI)E\/FI MDRAMIDNT DI ,XN:

1. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property lies within the 20 year capture zone for the City of Elko.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Program. The sanitary
sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system and all street drainage will report to a
storm sewer system.

SECTION 3-3-6 FINAL ' “T STAGE (STAGE IiI)

Pre-submission Requirements (A)(1) — The Final Plat is in conformance with the zone
requirements. A moditication of standards for the lot dimensions was granted with the
conditional approval of the Preliminary Plat.

Page 3 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

Pre-submission Rer-*~~ments (A)(2) — The proposed final plat conforms to the preliminary
plat.

P~ ~1bmi-~*7n Requirements (A)(3) — The Title Sheet includes an aftidavit for public utilities
ana no objections were received from public utilities upon notification for the Preliminary Plat.

[al aFals Al Fal N 2-' ? Q lNFORNI AMIMAAT NDIDMATITNDRN DA DEAT A " PLAT SUBM[TTA':

A. Form and Content-The final plat conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.
B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision map identified the subdivision, and provides its location by
section, township, range and county.
2. The subdivision map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The subdivision map provides a scale, north point, and date of preparation.
C. Survey Data
I. The boundaries of the tract are fully balanced and closed.
2. All exceptions are noted on the plat.
3. The location and description of cardinal points are tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of
the tract are noted on the plat.
D. Descriptive Data
I. The name, right of way lines, courses, lengths and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the plat.
All drainage ways are noted on the plan.
All utility and public service easements are noted on the plat.
The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels and exceptions are shown on the
plat.
All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the plat.
There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the plat.
The location of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the plat with required
information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.
E. Dedication and Ad\nowledgment
. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements
and right of ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged and certified by a notary public.
F. Additional Information
All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the plat.
The centerline and width of each right of way is noted on the plat.
The plat indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine the
boundaries of the subdivision.
The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the plat.
The city boundary adjoining the subdivision is not identified on the plat, as the
plat is not adjoining a boundary.
The plat identifies the location of the section lines, and 1/16" section line
adjoining the subdivision boundaries.
G. City Engineer to Check
1. The Engineer shall check the final map for accuracy of dimensions, placement of
monuments, the establishment of survey records, and conformance with the
preliminary map.
a) Closure calculations have been provided.

B

Now

DAl e

&

Page 4 of 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

b) Civil improvement plans have been provided, previous civil
improvement plans have been approved for this subdivision.
¢) Civil improvement plans for drainage have been submitted.
d) An engineer’s estimate has not been provided.
2. It appears the lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required certifications
1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the final plat.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right of ways shown on the plat.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the final plat, certifying the signature of the City
Council.
The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the plat.
A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the plat and provides the required language.
The City Engineer’s Certificate is listed on the plat.
A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided
with the required language.
A copy of review by the state engineer is not available at this time.
A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the plat with
the required language.
10. The civil improvement plans identify the required water meters for the
subdivision.

N e

o

SECTIONS 3-3 ?® ¢t=ner~t- 2 327 {inclusive

1. The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of
code during the preliminary plat process. A modification of standards Hr lot dimensions
was approved during that process.

Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary plat
application, the proposed development conforms Sections 3-3-20 through 3-3-27 (inclusive).

SECTION 3-3-40-RESPONS'™ " ITY ¥R IMPPY"MENTS

The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with Section
3-3-40 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-41-ENGINEF™'NG PLANS

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans in conformance with section 3-3-41 of
City code. The plans have been approved by city staff.

SECTION 3-3-4° T )NSTRUCTINN AND rmonnrvmnl!

The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-42 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-43-REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with Section 3-
3-43 of city code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter and sidewalk, paving and utilities within the Village
Parkway, Village Green Circle, Nicole Court and Opal Drive right of ways.

Page S of' 8



FINAL PLAT 11-18
Gireat Basin Estates Phase 3
APN: 001-633-030

SECTION 3-3-44-AGREEMENT TO INSTA" * IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to address to conform to
Section 3-3-44 of city code.

SECTION 3-3-45-PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the
Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of city code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), * ® &/ ~=1 3.7 17

1. The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of
code during the preliminary plat process. A modification of standards for lot dimensions
was approved during that process.

Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary plat
application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G) and
3-2-17 of city code.

SECTION 3-8-FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT

I. The proposed subdivision has been removed from the FEMA Special Flood Hazard
Area by a Letter of Map Revision submitted to and approved by FEMA as Case No.
16-09-0367P with an eftective date of April 3,2017.

The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of city code.

FINDINGS

1. The Final Plat for Great Basin Lstates Phase 3 has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Plat is in conformance with the Preliminary Plat.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

5. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary
plat application, the proposed development conforms Sections 3-3-20 through 3-3-27
(inclusive).

6. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-40 of city code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans in conformance with section 3-3-
41 of City code. The plans have been approved by city staff.

Pape 6 of 8




FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3

APN: 001-633-030

8. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-42 of city code.

9. The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with
Section 3-3-43 of city code.

10. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-44 of city code.

I'1. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the
Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-45 of city code.

12. Based on the modification of standards for lot dimensions granted under the preliminary
plat application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E),
3-2-5(G) and 3-2-17 of city code.

13. The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of city code.

I4. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-8 Floodplain Management.

pPEAnMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the subdivision based on the following conditions:

1.

The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section 3-3-
44 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance with Section
3-3-45 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3-44 of city code, the public
improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two (2) years of the date
of Final Plat approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated in city code.

The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

The Developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of
the Final Plat by the City Council.

The Final Plat is approved for 38 single family residential lots.

The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

State approval of the subdivision is required.

Conformance with Preliminary Plat conditions is required.

Civil improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition Standard

Specifications for Public Works. All Right —of-Way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

Page 7 of 8




FINAL PLAT 11-18
Great Basin Estates Phase 3
APN:001-633-030

10. An engineer’s estimate for the public improvements shall be provided prior to the final
plat being presented to the City Council to allow for finalization of the required
Performance Agreement.

[ 1. Modify Planning Commission approval jurat to the 3™ day of May, 2016 prior to City
Council approval.

Page 8 ot'8















RECEIVED
Alo 15 2018

Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 44

North: 28473550.8913 East : 612360.1426
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 59.00
North: 28473511.6062 East : 612404.1617
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00
North: 28473436.9976 East : 612337.5768
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 74.00
North: 28473486.2704 East : 612282.3664
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 9.55
North: 28473493.3955 East : 612288.7253
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 75.45
North: 28473549.6878 East : 612338.9636
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: N 86-44-51 E
Course In: S 48-15-09 E Course Out: N 41-44-51 E
RP North: 28473539.7000 East : 612350.1549
End North: 28473550.8913 East : 612360.1426

Perimeter: 341.56 Area: 7,352 S.F. 0.169 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure -~ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 341,560,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 45

North: 28473511.6062 East : 612404.1617

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9269
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473397.0466 East : 612382.3420
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473436.9975 East : 612337.5768
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473511.6062 East : 612404.1617
Line Course: 5 21-04-39 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473511.6062 East : 612404.1617

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 80-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Page 1




Phase 3.txt
Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 46

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473431.7042 Fast : 612493.6920
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473357.0956 East : 612427.1071
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473397.0465 East : 612382.3419
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268
Line Course: S 31-08-20 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473471.6552 East : 612448.9268

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 47

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473317.1446 East : 612471.8722
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473357.0955 East : 612427.1070
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920
Line Course: S 44-32-56 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473431.7042 East : 612493.6920

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00




Phase 3.txt
Parcel name: Lot 48

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473351.8022 East : 612583.2223
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473277.1936 East : 612516.6374
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473317.1445 East : 612471.8722
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571
Line Course: S 46-10-09 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473391.7532 East : 612538.4571

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 49

North: 28473311.8512 East : 612627.9874

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00

North: 28473351.8021 East : 612583.2222
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 100.00

North: 28473277.1935 East : 612516.6373
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00

North: 28473237.2425 East : 612561.4025
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 100.00

North: 28473311.8512 East : 612627.9874
Line Course: S 36-17-33 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473311.8512 East : 612627.9874

Perimeter: 320.00 Area: 6,000 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 320,000,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 50

North: 28473307.5780 East : 612632.7754
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 6.42
North: 28473311.8528 East : 612627.9855

Page 3




Line Course:

North:

L.Line Course:

North:

Line Course:

North:

Line Course:

North:
Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:

Curve

Line Course:

North:

Perimeter:

Mapcheck Closure -

S 41-44-51 W
28473237.2442
S 48-15-09 E
28473220.5580
S 37-41-1¢ E
28473186.0708
N 41-45-12 E
28473264.8130
61.56
4-33-04
61.54
S 46-17-55 W
28472729.3656
28473307.582¢6
5 01-47-24 E
28473307.5826

342.1¢6 Area:

Error Closure: 0.0045
Error North: 0.00452
Precision 1: 76,037.78
Parcel name: Lot 51
North: 28473264.8082
Curve Length: 74.85
Delta: 5-32-02
Chord: 74.82
Course In: S 46-17-55 W
RP North: 28472729.3608
End North: 28473208.2818
Line Course: S 48-00-44 W
North: 28473135.8321
Line Course: N 37-41-16 W
North: 28473186.0672
Line Course: N 41-45-12 E
North: 28473264.8095
Perimeter: 352.18 Area:

Mapcheck Closure -
Error Closure:
Error North:

Precision 1:

0.0058
0.00125
60,720.69

Phase 3.txt

Length:
Length:
Length:

Length:

Length:

6,912 S.F.

(Uses listed courses,

100.00
East : 612561.4006
25.06
East 612580.0975
43.58
East : ©12606.7405
105.55
East 612677.0289
Radius: 775.00
Tangent: 30.80
Course: N 45-58-37 W
Course OQut: N 41-44-51 E
East 612116.7424
East 612632.7754
0.00
East 612632.7754
0.159 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: N 00-20-13 E
East 0.00003
East 612677.0290
Radius: 775.00
Tangent: 37.45
Course: S 40-56-04 E

Course Out:

(Uses listed courses,

N 51-49-57 E

East 612116.7425
East 612726.0533
Length: 108.30
East 612645.5553
Length: 63.48
East 612606.7463
Length: 105.55
East 612677.0347
7,389 S.F. 0.170 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: N 77-25-02 E

East

0.00562



Parcel name: Lot 52
North: 28473208.2841 East 612726.0514
Curve Length: 74.85 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 5-32-01 Tangent: 37.45
Chord: 74.82 Course: S 35-24-03 E
Course In: S 51-49-57 W Course Out: N 57-21-58 E
RP North: 28472729.3631 East 612116.7405
End North: 28473147.2966 East 612769.3940
Line Course: S 50-43-33 W Length: 111.20
North: 28473076.9034 East 612683.3113
Line Course: N 32-39-03 W Length: 69.99
North: 28473135.8332 East 612645.5504
Line Course: N 48-00-44 E Length: 108.30
North: 28473208.2829 East 612726.0484
Perimeter: 364.34 Area: 7,935 S.F. 0.182 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0032 Course: S 67-29-22 W
Error North: -0.00121 East ~-0.00293
Precision 1: 113,856.25
Parcel name: Lot 53
North: 28473147.2961 East 612769.3946
Curve Length: 74.85 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 5-32-01 Tangent: 37.45
Chord: 74.82 Course: S 29-52-02 E
Course In: S 57-21-58 W Course OQut: N 62-53-59 E
RP North: 28472729.3626 East 612116.7410
End North: 28473082.4133 East 612806.6542
Line Course: S 53-39-25 W Length: 107.04
North: 28473018.9794 East €12720.4353
Line Course: N 32-39-03 W Length: 68.80
North: 28473076.9072 East 612683.3165
Line Course: N 50-43-33 E Length: 111.20
North: 28473147.3003 East 612769.3993
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E TLength: 0.00
North: 28473147.3003 East 612769.3993
Perimeter: 361.89 Area: 7,824 S.F. 0.180 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0063 Course: N 47-53-33 E
Error North: 0.00425 East 0.00471

Precision 1:

Phase 3.txt

57,442.86




Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 54

North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP  North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

LLine Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:

Perimeter:

28473069.3312 East
63.52 Radius:
4-24-42 Tangent:
63.51 Course:
S 65-39-51 W Course Out:
28472729.3617 East
28473126.1459 East

N 63-48-49 E Length: 103.71
28473171.9123 East

S 33-34-46 E Length: 76.31
28473108.3370 East

S 68-46-47 W Length: 108.63
28473069.0179 East :
S 65-39-51 W Length: 5.00
28473066.9574 East
N 24-20-09 W Length: 2.61
28473069.3355 East

612868.4368
825.00

31.78

N 26-32-30 W
N 61-15-09 E
612116.7416
612840.0585

612933.1240
612975.3305
612874.0661
612869.5104

612868.4349

359.77 Area: 7,621 S.F. 0.175 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

0.0047 Course:
0.00429 East
76,548.94

Parcel name: Lot 55

N 24-54-01 W
-0.00199

North: 28473126.1460 East 612840.0584
Curve Length: 58.26 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 4-02-46 Tangent: 29.14
Chord: 58.25 Course: N 30-46-14 W
Course In: S 61-15-09 W Course Out: N 57-12-23 E
RP North: 28472729.3618 East 612116.7416
End North: 28473176.1938 East €12810.2588
Line Course: N 57-29-16 E Length: 100.01
North: 28473229.9471 East 612894.5949
Line Course: S 33-34-46 E Length: 69.66
North: 28473171.9120 East 612933.1234
Line Course: S 63-48-49 W Length: 103.71
North: 28473126.1455 East 612840.0578
Perimeter: 331.63 Area: 6,473 S.F. 0.149 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0008 Course: S 50-47-13 W
Error North: -0.00049 Fast -0.00060
Precision 1: 414,550.00

Page 6




Parcel name: Lot 56
North: 28473176.1939
Curve Length: 70.23
Delta: 4-52-39
Chord: 70.21
Course In: S 57-12-23 W
RP North: 28472729.3620
End North: 28473233.5426
Curve Length: 22.40
Delta: 85-33-39
Chord: 20.38
Course In: N 52-19-44 E
RP North: 28473242.7095
End North: 28473253.8373
Line Course: N 47-53-23 E
North: 28473304.2903
Line Course: S 42-06-44 E
North: 28473229.9438
Line Course: S 57-29-16 W
North: 28473176.1904
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W
North: 28473176.1904
Perimeter: 368.09 Area:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

Parcel name:

North:
Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

0.0039
-0.00347
94,384.62

Lot 57

28473304.2895
N 47-53-23 E

28473344.7578
21.47
82-00-04
19.68
S 42-06-37 E
28473333.6300
28473345.1390
S 50-06-33 E
28473290.9020
17.45
49-59-41

Phase 3.txt

Length:
Length:
Length:

Length:

8,568

(Uses listed courses,

East 612810.2587
Radius: 825.00
Tangent: 35.14
Course: N 35-13-56 W
Course Out: N 52-19-44 E
East 612116.7414
East 612769.7552
Radius: 15.00
Tangent: 13.88
Course: N 05-06-33 E
Course Out: N 42-06-37 W
East 612781.6281
East 612771.5697
75.24
East 612827.3869
100.22
East 612894.5930
100.01
East 612810.2569
0.00
East 612810.2569
S.F. 0.197 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: S 28-20-56 W

East
Length:

East

-0.00187

612827.3875

60.35

East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:

Course Out:

Length:

East
East
84.57
East
Radlius:
Tangent:

Page 7

612872.1584
15.00

13.04

N 88-53-25 E

N 39-53-27 E

612882.2168
612891.8367

612956.7246
20.00
9.33




Phase 3.txt

Chord: 16.90 Course: S 25-06-43 E
Course In: S 39-53-27 W Course Out: N 89-53-08 E
RP North: 28473275.5566 East 612943.8980
End North: 28473275.5965 East 612963.8980
Line Course: S 56-37-37 W Length: 82.99
North: 28473229.9447 East 612894.5925
Line Course: N 42-06-44 W Length: 100.22
North: 28473304.2912 East 612827.3865
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473304.2912 East 612827.3865
Perimeter: 367.04 Area: 8,586 S.F. 0.197 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0020 Course: N 29-41-16 W

Error North: 0.00171 East -0.00098
Precision 1: 183,525.00
Parcel name: Lot 58
North: 28473275.5971 East 612963.8968
Curve Length: 81.11 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 92-56-48 Tangent: 52.64
Chord: 72.51 Course: S 46-35-16 E
Course In: N 89-53-08 E Course Out: 5 03-03-40 E
RP  North: 28473275.6970 East 613013.8967
End North: 28473225.7683 East 613016.5668
Line Course: S 03-03-40 E Length: 99.50
North: 28473126.4103 East 613021.8802
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 49.94
North: 28473108.3343 East 612975.3263
Line Course: N 33-34-46 W Length: 76.31
North: 28473171.9097 East 612933.1198
Line Course: N 33-34-46 W Length: 69.66
North: 28473229.9448 East 612894.5914
Line Course: N 56-37-37 E Length: 82.99
North: 28473275.5966 East 612963.8969
l.ine Course: S 90-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473275.5966 East 612963.8969
Perimeter: 459.51 Area: 11,758 S.F. 0.270 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0005 Course: S 06-41-40 E
Error North: -0.00053 East 0.00006
Precision 1: 919,020.00



Parcel name: Lot 59
North: 28473225.7683 East 613016.5668
Curve Length: 62.48 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 71-36-03 Tangent: 36.06
Chord: 58.50 Course: N 51-08-19 E
Course In: N 03-03-40 W Course Out: S 74-39-43 E
RP North: 28473275.6970 East 613013.8968
End North: 28473262.4713 East 613062.1159
Line Course: S 74-39-43 E TLength: 262.30
North: 28473193.0894 East 613315.0733
Line Course: S 80-27-31 W Length: 217.18
North: 28473157.0896 East : 613100.8977
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 84.76
North: 28473126.4104 East 613021.8848
Line Course: N 03-03-40 W Length: 99.50
North: 28473225.7684 East 613016.5714
Perimeter: 726.22 Area: 18,725 S.F. 0.430 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radil, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0046 Course: N 89-24-51 E
Error North: 0.00005 East 0.00455
Precision 1: 157,873.91
Parcel name: Lot 60
North: 28473316.4906 East 613042.8083
Curve Length: 61.10 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 70-00-42 Tangent: 35.02
Chord: 57.37 Course: S 19-40-04 E
Course In: S 35-19-35 W Course Out: S 74-39-43 E
RP North: 28473275.6970 East 613013.8967
Fnd North: 28473262.4714 East: 613062.1157
Line Course: S 74-39-43 E Length: 262.30
North: 28473193.0894 East 613315.0731
Line Course: N 46-55-41 W Length: 204.73
North: 28473332.9029 East : 613165.5185
Line Course: N 54-33-09 W Length: 90.62
North: 28473385.4585 East 613091.6952
Line Course: S 35-19-35 W Length: 84.54
North: 28473316.4848 Fast 613042.8113
Perimeter: 703.28 Area: 19,445 S.F. 0.446 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0066 Course: S 27-18-00 E
Error North: -0.00584 East 0.00301
Precislion 1: 106,559.09

Phase 3.txt

Page 9




Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 61
North: 28473329.2660 East 612988.7897
Line Course: N 50-06-33 W Length: 34.90
North: 28473351.6483 East 612962.0121
Line Course: N 37-00-20 E Length: 102.79
North: 28473433.7340 East 613023.8806
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 83.24
North: 28473385.4584 East 613091.6918
Line Course: S 35-19-35 W Length: 84.54
North: 28473316.4847 East 613042.8080
Curve Length: 39.65 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 45-25-49 Tangent: 20.93
Chord: 38.61 Course: N 77-23-20 W
Course In: S 35-19-35 W Course OQut: N 10-06-14 W
RP North: 28473275.6911 East 613013.8963
End North: 28473324.9157 East 613005.1246
Curve Length: 17.4% Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.90 Course: N 75-06-24 W
Course In: N 10-06-14 W Course Out: S 39-53-27 W
RP North: 28473344.6055 East 613001.6159
End North: 28473329.2601 East 612988.7894
Perimeter: 362.57 Area: 8,289 S.F. 0.190 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0059 Course: S 02-53-31 W
Error North: -0.00584 East ~0.00030
Precision 1: 61,452.54
Parcel name: Lot 62
North: 28473407.8278 East 612910.4311
Line Course: N 37-00-20 E Length: 86.93
North: 28473477.2481 East 612962.7536
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 75.03
North: 28473433.7339 East 613023.8766
Line Course: S 37-00-20 W Length: 102.79
North: 28473351.6482 East 612962.0081
Line Course: N 50-06-33 W Length: 35.20
North: 28473374.2229 East 612935.0002
Curve Length: 10.93 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 31-18-01 Tangent: 5.60
Chord: 10.79 Course: N 34-27-33 W
Course In: N 39-53-27 E Course Out: S 71-11-28 W
RP North: 28473389.5683 East 612947.8268

Page 10




End North: 28473383.1200 East 612928.8948
Curve Length: 31.36 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 35-56-09 Tangent: 16.22
Chord: 30.85 Course: N 36-46-36 W
Course In: S 71-11-28 W Course Out: N 35-15~19 E
RP North: 28473366.9994 East 612881.5648
End North: 28473407.8288 East 612910.4259
Line Course: N 08-52-50 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473407.8288 East 612910.4259
Perimeter: 342.23 Area: 7,239 S.F. 0.166 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0053 Course: N 79-03-06 W
Error North: 0.00101 East -0.00524
Precision 1: 64,573.58
Parcel name: Lot 63
North: 28473414.6415 East 612866.4001
Line Course: N 07-35-56 W Length: 146.26
North: 28473559.6171 East 612847.0591
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 142.02
North: 28473477.2516 East 612962.7553
Line Course: S 37-00-20 W Length: 86.93
North: 28473407.8313 East 612910.4328
Curve Length: 46.18 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 52-55-02 Tangent: 24.88
Chord: 44.5¢ Course: N 81-12-12 W
Course In: S 35-15-19 W Course Out: N 17-39-43 W
RP North: 28473367.0019 East 612881.5718
End North: 28473414.6450 East 612866.4018
Perimeter: 421.39 Area: 9,139 S.F. 0.210 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0039 Course: N 25-04-50 E
Error North: 0.00353 East 0.00165
Precision 1: 108,048.72
Parcel name: Lot 64
North: 28473458.0698 East 612756.4434
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 136.10
North: 28473559.6170 East 612847.0601
Line Course: S 07-35-56 E Length: 146.26
North: 28473414.6414 East 612866.4011

Phase 3.txt

Page 11




Curve

Line Course:

North:

Line Course:

North:

Perimeter:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure: 0.0017
Error North: 0.00141
Precision 1: 258,770.59
Parcel name: Lot 65
North: 28473398.3800 East
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length:
North: 28473458.0697
Line Course: S 45-09-12 E Length:
North: 28473381.2722
Curve Length: 10.93
Delta: 31-18-02
Chord: 10.79
Course In: N 73-24-39 W
RP North: 28473386.9823
End North: 28473372.1452
Line Course: S 47-53-23 W Length:
North: 28473329.3434
Line Course: N 48-15-17 W Length:
North: 28473398.3823
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W TLength:
North: 28473398.3823
Perimeter: 367.34 Area: 8,290

Mapcheck Closure -
Error Closure:
Error North:

Precision 1:

Length:
Delta:
Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:

Phase 3.txt

48.65
55-44-56
46.75

S 17-39-43 E
28473366.9983
28473381.2736

N 45-09-12 W Length:

28473458.0712
S 08-52-50 E

28473458.0712
439.91

Area: 9,913

0.0025
0.00228
146,940.00

Length:

(Uses listed courses,

(Uses listed courses,

Radius:
Tangent:
Course:

Course Out:

50.00
26.45
S 44-27-49 W
N 73-24-39 W

East 612881.5711
East 612833.6522
108.90
East 612756.4425
0.00
East 612756.4425
S.F. 0.228 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: N 32-10-58 W
East -0.00089
612703.1787
80.00
East 612756.4435
108.90
East 612833.6532
Radius: 20.00
Tangent: 5.60
Course: S 32-14-22 W

Course Out:

S 42-06-37 E

East 612814.4856

East 612827.8968
63.83

East 612780.5442
103.69

East 612703.1798
0.00

East 612703.1798
S.F. 0.190 ACRES

radii, and deltas)

Course:
East

N 26-06-30 E
0.00112

Parcel name:

Lot 66

Page 12




North: 28473398.3800 East 612703.1787
Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.69
North: 28473329.3411 East 612780.5431
Line <Course: S 47-53-23 W Length: 54.90
North: 28473292.5274 East ©12739.8152
Curve Length: 23.29 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 88-58-41 Tangent: 14.73
Chord: 21.02 Course: N 87-37-17 W
Course In: N 42-06-37 W Course Out: S 46-52-04 W
RP North: 28473303.6552 East 612729.7568
End North: 28473293.3999 East 612718.8102
Curve Length: 73.73 Radius: 825.00
Delta: 5-07-13 Tangent: 36.89
Chord: 73.70 Course: N 45-41-33 W
Course In: S 46-52-04 W Course Out: N 41-44-51 E
RP North: 28472729.3604 East 612116.7434
End North: 28473344.8817 Fast 612666.0689
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 7.93
North: 28473350.1619 East 612660.1524
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 64.62
North: 28473398.3763 East ©12703.1770
Line Course: S 90-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473398.3763 East 612703.1770
Perimeter: 328.16 Area: 6,570 S.F. 0.151 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radil, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0041 Course: S 24-14-30 W
Error North: -0.00371 Bast -0.00167
Precision 1: 80,039.02
Parcel name: Lot 67
North: 28473350.1625 East 612660.1514
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 88.68
North: 28473409.2100 East 612593.9885
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: N 03-15-09 W
Course In: N 41-44-51 E Course Out: N 48-15-09 W
RP North: 28473420.4013 East 612603.9762
End North: 28473430.3890 East 612592.7849
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 49.62
North: 28473467.4099 East 612625.8244
Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.67
North: 28473398.3843 East 612703.1738
Line Course: S 41-44-40 W Length: €4.62
North: 28473350.1699 East 612660.1492
Line Course: N 30-41-59 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473350.1699 East 612660.1492

Phase 3.txt

Page 13




Phase 3.txt

Perimeter: 330.16 Area: 6,651 S.F. 0.153 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0077 Course: N 16-43-22 W
Error North: 0.00736 East -0.00221

Precision 1: 42,876.62
Parcel name: Lot 68
North: 28473467.4083 East 612625.8264
Line Course: S 48-15-17 E Length: 103.67
North: 28473398.3827 East : 612703.1758
Line Course: N 41-44-40 E Length: 80.00
North: 28473458.0724 East 612756.4406
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 80.37
North: 28473511.5838 East : 612696.4750
Curve Length: 56.70 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 64-58-12 Tangent: 31.84
Chord: 53.71 Course: S 59-15-27 W
Course In: N 63-13-39 W Course QOut: S 01-44-33 W
RP North: 28473534.1063 East 612651.8349
End North: 28473484.1294 East: 612650.3145
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-42 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.90 Course: S 66-44-42 W
Course In: S 01-44-33 W Course Out: N 48-15-09 W
RP North: 28473464.1386 East 612649.7064
End North: 28473477.4556 East 612634.7846
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 13.46
North: 28473467.4133 East 612625.8223
Line Course: S 380-00-00 E Length: 0.00
North: 28473467.4133 East 612625.8223
Perimeter: 351.65 Area: 7,196 S.F. 0.165 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0065 Course: N 38-48-39 W
Error North: 0.00505 East -0.00406
Precision 1: 54,100.00
Parcel name: Lot 69
North: 28473511.5796 East 612696.4796
Curve Length: 64.43 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 73-50-06 Tangent: 37.56
Chord: 60.07 Course: N 10-08-42 W

Page 14




Course In:
RP North:

End North:

Course:
North:

Course:
North:

Course:

Line

Line

Line

North:

Line Course:

North:

Course:
North:

Line

Perimeter:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

Parcel name:

North:
Line Course:
North:
L.Line Course:
North:
Line Course:
North:
Line Course:
North:
Curve Length:
Delta:
Chord:
Course In:
RP North:
End North:
Line Course:
North:
Perimeter:

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure:
Error North:
Precision 1:

N 63-13-39 W
28473534.1020
28473570.7069
N 42-56-15 E
28473633.0523
S 54-33-09 E
28473559.6182
S 41-44-40 W
28473458.0710
N 48-15-19 W
28473511.5824
N 03-34-35 W
28473511.5824

492.68 Area:

0.0029
0.00278
169,889.66

Lot 70

28473581.5078

N 48-15-19 W
28473640.7518
N 46-08-47 E
28473707.6226
3 54-33-09 E
28473633.0460
S 42-56-15 W
28473570.7006
53.65
61-28-29
51.11
S 42-56-15 W
28473534.0957
28473581.5016
S 43-37-31 E
28473581.5016

452.90 Area:

0.0062
-0.00618
73,048.39

Phase 3.txt
Course Out: N 42-56-15 E

(Uses listed courses,

(Uses listed courses,

East 612651.8395

East 612685.8995
Length: 85.16

East 612743.9105
Length: 126.62

East 612847.0611
Length: 136.10

East : 612756.4445
Length: 80.37

East 612696.4789
Length: 0.00

East 612696.4789

15,110 S.F. 0.347 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: N 13-24-13 W

East

-0.00066

East 612635.9433
Length: 88.98
East 612569.5537
Length: 96.52
East 612639.1554
Length: 128.59
East 612743.9109
Length: 85.16
East 612685.8999
Radius: 50.00
Tangent: 238.73
Course: N 77-48-00 W

Course Out:

N 18-32-14 W

East 612651.8399
East 612635.9439
Length: 0.00
FEast 612635.9439
12,635 S.F. 0.290 ACRES
radii, and deltas)
Course: S 05-10-00 E

East

0.00056




Parcel name:

North: 284735%81.8964 East
Line Course: S 48-30-52 E Length: 107.41
North: 28473510.7447 Fast
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius:
Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent:
Chord: 16.90 Course:
Course ln: N 48-15-09 W Course Out:
RP North: 28473524.0617 East
End North: 28473%26.9306 East
Curve Length: 69.56 Radius:
Delta: 79-42-36 Tangent:
Chord: 64.08 Course:
Course In: N 81-45-10 E Course Out:
RP North: 28473534.1028 East
End North: 28473581.5087 East
Line Course: N 48-15-19 W Length: 88.98
North: 28473640.7527 East
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 78.89
North: 28473581.8940 East
Perimeter: 362.30 Area: 7,099 3.F.

Mapcheck Closure -

Error Closure: 0.0040 Course:
Error North: -0.00249 East

Precision 1: 90,572.50

Parcel name: Lot 72

North: 28473581.8964 East
Line Course: S 48-30-52 E Length: 107.41
North: 28473510.7447 East
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.08
North: 28473463.6816 East
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius:
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent:
Chord: 21.21 Course:
Course In: N 48-15-09 W Course Out:
RP North: 28473473.6693 East
End North: 28473462.4780 East
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 92.41
North: 28473524.0091 East
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 77.59
North: 28473581.8980 East
Perimeter: 364.05 Area: 8,312 S.F.

Phase 3.txt

Lot 71

(Uses listed courses,

Page 16

radii,

612517.0211

612597.4844
20.00

9.33

N 16-45-01 E
N 81-45-10 E
612582.5626
612602.3558
50.00

41.74

N 31-36-28 E
N 18-32-14 W
612651.8387
612635.9427

612569.5531

612517.0242

0.163 ACRES

and deltas)
S 51-25-09 E
0.00312

612517.0211

612597.4844

612555.4826
15.00

15.00

S 86-44-51 W
S 41-44-51 W
612544.2913
612534.3036

612465.3577

612517.0210

0.191 ACRES




Phase 3.txt

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0015 Course: N 05-02-22 W
Error North: 0.00153 East : -0.00014

Precision 1: 242,700.00

Parcel name: Lot 73

North: 28473588.1956 East : 612393.4351
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 96.40
North: 28473524.0077 East : 612465.3578
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 77.59
North: 28473581.8966 East : 612517.0211
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.40
North: 28473656.0722 East : 612433.5071
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 62.59
North: 28473609.3746 East : 612392.2316
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 90-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: S 03-15-09 E
Course In: S 48-15-09 E Course Out: S 41-44-51 W
RP North: 28473599.3869 East : 612403.4229
End North: 28473588.1956 East : 612393.4351

Perimeter: 371.54 Area: 8,595 S.F. 0.197 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: N 00-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 371,540,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 74

North: 28473656.0721 FEast : 612433.9072

Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 78.89

North: 28473714.9309 East : 612486.4360
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.40

North: 28473640.7553 East : 612569.5500
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 78.89

North: 28473581.8965 East : 612517.0212
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.40

North: 28473656.0721 East : ©612433.9072
Line Course: N 42-11-04 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473656.0721 East : 612433.9072

Perimeter: 380.58 Area: 8,788 S.F. 0.202 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Page 17




Phase 3.txt
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000
Precision 1: 380,580,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 75

North: 28473714.9308 East : 612486.4361

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.40

North: 28473640.7552 East : 612569.5501
Line Course: N 46-08-47 E Length: 96.52

North: 28473707.6260 East : 612639.1519
Line Course: N 54-33-09 W Length: 105.44

North: 28473768.7767 East : 612553.2554
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 14.00

North: 28473778.0986 East : 612542.8102
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 84.67

North: 28473714.9274 East : 612486.4328
Line Course: 8 43-28-06 E Length: 0.00

North: 28473714.9274 East : 612486.4328

Perimeter: 412.03 Area: 10,309 S.F. 0.237 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0047 Course: S 44-02-34 W
Error North: -0.00339 East : -0.00328

Precision 1: 87,665.96

Parcel name: Lot 76

North: 28473875.3134 East : ©12433.8827

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 25.00

North: 28473891.9596 East : 612415.2306
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473844.5085 East : 612372.882¢
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473770.5992 East : 612455.6982
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473818.0503 East @ 612498.0462
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 86.00

North: 28473875.3134 East : 612433.8827

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00
Page 18




Phase 3.txt

Parcel name: Lot 77

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473770.5993 East : 612455.6981
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473723.1482 East : 612413.3501
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825
Line Course: N 32-00-19 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473844.5086 East : 612372.8825

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 78

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473723.1483 East : 612413.3501
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473675.6972 East : 612371.0021
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473749.6064 East : 612288.1865
Line Course: N 41-44-51 F Length: 63.60

North: 28473797.0575 Fast : 612330.5345
Line Course: N 01-47-24 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473797.0575 East : 612330.5345 :

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas) |
Frror Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 79

Page 19




Phase 3.txt

North: 28473749.6065 East : 612288.1864

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473675.6972 East : 612371.0020
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473628.2461 East : 612328.6540
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 284737495.6065 East : 612288.1864
Line Course: N 90-00-00 W Length: 0.00

North: 28473749.6065 East : 612288.1864

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 80

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00

North: 28473628.2462 East : 612328.6539
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60

North: 28473580.7951 East : 612286.3059
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00

North: 28473654.7043 East : 612203.4903
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384
Line Course: N 29-21-28 E Length: 0.00

North: 28473702.1554 East : 612245.8384

Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East : 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Lot 81

North: 28473654.7044 East : 612203.4903
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.60
North: 28473607.2533 East : 612161.1423

Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 111.00
Page 20




Phase 3.txt

North: 28473533.3440 East 612243.9579
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.60
North: 28473580.7951 East 612286.3059
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 111.00
North: 28473654.7044 East 612203.4903
Line Course: N 48-21-59 W Length: 0.00
North: 28473654.7044 East 612203.4903
Perimeter: 349.20 Area: 7,060 S.F. 0.162 ACRES
Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0000 Course: S 90-00-00 E
Error North: 0.00000 East: 0.00000

Precision 1: 349,200,000.00

Parcel name: Street Dedication

North: 28472369.4166 East 613949.2330
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 60.00
North: 28472329.4656 East 613993.9982
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 226.15
North: 28472160.7382 East 613843.4164
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: 80-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: S 03-15-09 E
Course In: S 48-15-09 E Course Out: S 41-44-51 W
RP North: 28472150.7504 East 613854.6077
End North: 28472139.5592 East 613844.6200
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 188.81
North: 28472013.8402 East 613985.4886
Curve Length: 23.56 Radius: 15.00
Delta: S80-00-00 Tangent: 15.00
Chord: 21.21 Course: N 86-44-51 E
Course In: N 41-44-51 E Course Out: S 48-15-09 E
RP North: 28472025.0315 East 613995.4763
End North: 28472015.0437 East 614006.6676
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 63.08
North: 28472062.1069 East 614048.6694
Curve Length: 17.45 Radius: 20.00
Delta: 49-59-41 Tangent: 9.33
Chord: 16.90 Course: N 16-45-01 E
Course In: N 48-15-09 W Course Out: N 81-45-10 E
RP North: 28472075.4239 East 614033.7476
End North: 28472078.2927 East 614053.5408
Curve Length: 244.34 Radius: 50.00
Delta: 279-59-23 Tangent: 41.96
Chord: 64.29 Course: S 48-15-09 E
Course In: N 81-45-10 E Course Out: S 01-44-33 W
RP North: 28472085.4650 East 614103.0237
End North: 28472035.4881 East 614101.5033

Page 21




Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP  North:

End North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP  North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP  North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Phase 3.txt

17.45 Radius:
49-59-42 Tangent:
16.90 Course:
S 01-44-33 W Course Out:
28472015.4973 East
28472028.8143 East
S 41-44-51 W Length: 63.08
28471981.7512 East
23.56 Radius:
90~00-00 Tangent:
21.21 Course:

S 48-15-09 E

28471971.7635 East
28471960.5722 East
S 48-15-09 E Length: 96.61
28471896.2445 East
73.73 Radius:
5-07-13 Tangent:
73.70 Course:

S 41-44-51 W

28471280.7232 East
28471844.7627 East
23.29 Radius:
88-58-41 Tangent:
21.02 Course:
N 46-52-04 E Course Out:
28471855.0180 East
28471843.8902 East
N 47-53-23 E Length: 118.73
28471923.5057 East
10.93 Radius:
31-18-02 Tangent:
10.79 Course:
N 42-06-37 W Course Out:
28471938.3428 East
28471932.6327 East
126.19 Radlius:
144-36-07 Tangent:
95.27 Course:
S 73-24-39 E Course Out:
28471918.3573 East
28471934.4779 East
10.93 Radius:
31-18-01 Tangent:
10.79 Course:

N 71-11-28 B

28471940.9262 East
28471925.5808 East
s 50-06-33 E Length: 70.10
28471880.6238 East
17.45 Radius:
49-59-41 Tangent:
16.90 Course:

Page 22

Course Out:

Course Out:

Course Out:

20.00

9.33

S 66-44-42 W
N 48-15-09 W
614100.8952
614085.9734

614043.9717
15.00

15.00

S 03-15-09 E
S 41-44-51 W
614055.1630
614045.1752

614117.2547
825.00

36.89

S 45-41-33 E
N 46-52-04 E
613567.9291
614169.9959
15.00

14.73

s 87-37-17 E
S 42-06-37 E
614180.9426
614191.0010

614279.0815
20.00

5.60

N 32-14-22 E
S 73-24-39 E
614265.6703
614284.8378
50.00

156.68

N 88-53-25 E
N 71-11-28 E
614332.7566
614380.0866
20.00

5.60

S 34-27-33 E
S 39-53-27 W
614399.0186
614386.1921

614439.9775
20.00

9.33

s 75-06-24 E




Course In:

RP North:

End North:

Curve Length:

Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course 1In:

RP  North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP  North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Line Course:
North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

Chord:

Course In:

RP North:

End North:
Line Course:
North:

Curve Length:
Delta:

N 39-53-27 E
28471895.9692
28471876.2794
244.34
279-59-22
64.29
5 10-06-14 E
28471827.0548
28471826.9549
17.45
49-59-41
16.90
S 89-53-08 W
28471826.9150
28471842.2603
N 50-06-33 W
28471896.4973
21.47
82-00-04
19.68
S 39-53-27 W
28471884.9883
28471896.1162
S 47-53-23 W
28471805.1950
22.40
85-33-39
20.38
S 42-06-37 E
28471794.0671
28471784.9002
192.01
13-20-07
191.58
S 52-19-44 W
28471280.719¢6
28471620.6891
S 24-20-09 E
28471618.3110
5 65-39-51 W
28471597.7068
N 24-20-09 W
28471600.0849
323.50
23-55-00
321.16
S 65-39-51 W
28471280.7196
28471858.9366
N 48-15-09 W
28472102.2512
23.56
90-00-00

Phase 3.txt
Course Out:
East
East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East
84.57
East
Radlus:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
Edst
East
135.59
East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East
Length: 2.61
East
50.00
East
2.61
East :
Radius:
Tangent:
Course:
Course Out:
East
East
365.42
Fast
Radius:
Tangent:
Page 23

Length:

Length:

Length:

Length:

Length:

S 10-06-14 E
614452.8041
614456.3127
50.00

41.96

S 39-53-27 W
S 89-53-08 W
614465.0844
614415.0845
20.00

9.33

N 25-06-43 W
N 39-53-27 E
614395.0845
614407,9111

©614343.0233
15.00

13.04

S 88-53-25 W
N 42-06-37 W
614333.4033
614323.3450

614222.7568
15.00

13.88

S 05-06-33 W
S 52-19-44 W
614232.8152
©14220.9422
825.00

96.44

S 31-00-12 E
N 65-39-51 E
613567.9285
614319.6237

614320.6992

614275.1420

614274.0664
775.00
164.14

N 36-17-39 W
N 41-44-51 E
613567.9285
614083.9615

613811.3266
15.00
15.00




Phase 3.txt

Chord: 21.21 Course: S 86-44-51 W
Course In: S 41-44-51 W Course Out: N 48-15-09 W
RP North: 28472091.0598 East : 613801.3389
End North: 28472101.0476 East : 613790.1476
Line Course: S 41-44-51 W Length: 75.45
North: 28472044.7554 East : 613739.9093
Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 60.00
North: 28472084.7063 East : 613695.1441
Line Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 381.60
North: 28472369.4129 East : 613949.2321
Line Course: S 32-00-19 E Length: 0.00
North: 28472369.4129 East : 613949.2321

Perimeter: 3501.57 Area: 95,280 S.F. 2.187 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0038 Course: S 13-46-59 W
Error North: -0.00367 East : -0.00090

Precision 1: 921,468.42

Parcel name: Total Area

North: 28472443.3259 East : 613866.4175
Line Course: S 48-15-09 E Length: 185.00
North: 28472320.1438 East : 614004.4435
Line Course: S 54-33-09 E Length: 751.56
North: 28471884.2716 East : 614616.6998
Line Course: S 46-55-41 E Length: 204.73
North: 28471744.4581 East : 614766.2544
Line Course: S 80-27-31 W Length: 217.18
North: 28471708.4584 East : 614552.0789
Line Course: S 68-46-47 W Length: 243.33
North: 28471620.3840 East : 614325.2477
Line Course: S 65-39-51 W Length: 55.00
North: 28471597.7193 East : 614275.1346
Line Course: N 24-20-09 W Length: 2.61
North: 28471600.0974 East : 614274.0591
Curve Length: 37.39 Radius: 775.00
Delta: 2-45-52 Tangent: 18.70
Chord: 37.39 Course: N 25-43-05 W
Course In: S 65-39~-51 W Course Out: N 62-53-59 E
RP North: 28471280.7321 East : 613567.9212
End North: 28471633.7828 East: 614257.8344
Line Course: S 53-39-25 W Length: 107.04
North: 28471570.3489 East : 614171.6155
Line Course: N 32-39-03 W Length: 138.79
North: 28471687.2064 East : 614096.7357
Line Course: N 37-41-16 W Length: 107.06
North: 28471771.9288 East : 614031.2837

Line Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 399.06
Page 24




Line

Line

Line

Phase 3.txt

North: 28472037.6426 East : 613733.5505
Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 9.55

North: 28472044.7677 East : 613739.9093
Course: N 48-15-09 W Length: 171.00

North: 28472158.6279 East : 613612.3286
Course: N 41-44-51 E Length: 381.60

North: 28472443.3345 East : 613866.4166

Perimeter: 3010.90 Area: 420,362 S.F. 9.650 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure - (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0086 Course: N 06-12-57 W
Error North: 0.00852 Fast : -0.00093

Precision 1: 350,104.65

Page 25










Agenda Item 1L A.

10.

I1.

12.

[3.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review and consideration of a request from Mr. Rob Fitzgerald of Surebrec
Holdings, LL.C for a Special Reimbursement Agreement as defined in City Code 9-
1-35 (E), for reimbursement of a sewer main and boring costs within the I-80 Right
of Way, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 Special Session
Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 7 Minutes
Background Information: Mr. Fitzgerald is the owner of a parcel of land and wishes
to develop. In order to do so, Mr. Fitzgerald needs to install sewer service. Currently
there is not a viable means of discharging sewer from the site. In order to do so, a
sewer main would need to be installed under I-80 or a sewer lift station would need
to be installed.
Staff vastly prefers a gravity sewer main under 1-80 when compared to a lift station
alternative. The sewer main bore is proposed to be located at a low point where it
could be used by multiple parcels. Routing the sewer main under 1-80 results in a
section of sewer main that is not adjacent to any developable property frontage. RL
Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: Approx. $420,000.00
Budget amount available: To be included in next year’s budget if approved
Fund name: Sewer
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Request letter, vicinity map, engineer’s estimate
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council. If in support, direct Staff to draft a
Special Reimbursement Agreement and bring back to Council for possible final
approval.
Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Luke Fitzgerald
e¢ltholuke @ omail.com

Created on 12/11/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1




To: City of Elko Planning
From Copper Trails LLC
RE: Koinonia Construction Application Authorization

To whom it may concern,

Koinonia Construction Inc and Luke Fitzgerald have authorization to apply for the request to vacate
eas on ARN,001-61J-028 address 2767 Copper Trail.

Copper Trails L
Robert Fitzgerald
775-219-8199




To: City Of Elko
From: SUREBREC HOLDINGS LLC
Re: Sewer Bore under 180

Surebrec Holdings LLC Desires to develop a parcel of property at the east end of Ruby Vista Dr.
In order to achieve this we will either need to buid a lift station or bore under 180. We have met
with staff and they would prefer us to install the I80 bore in order to support future development.

Surebrec Holdings LLC requests a special Reimbursement Agreement, in accordance with
Section 9-1-35 E of City Code. The area we are requesting the agreement to apply to is the
portion within the 180 Right of Way where development cannot occur.

Surebrec Holdings LLC
Rob Fitzgerald
775-219-8199




V’)NAKIS ENGINEERING, LLC

I & Water Resources Engineering
.and Surveying

225 Silver Stuieet, Suite 106
Etko, Nevada 89801
773738 5314

December 3, 2018

Mr. Luke Fitzgerald

Keller Williams Group One, Inc.
461 Fourth Street

Elko, Nevada 89801

RE: 1-80 Bore and Case Budget Estimate.

Dear Luke:

| have put together a project budget estime  for the installation of 24-inch diameter steel casing
and 12-inch diameter sanitary sewer bene 1 |-80 near Zaga Way situated at the base of the
Kttridge drainage located to the east of Ell | talked with a couple of underground contractors
as well as specialty contractors that are licensed to bore and jack casing beneath I-80. The costs
shown on the attached spread sheet are on the high side however they will work well for budgeting
purposes. Please don't hesitate to call with any questions that you may have regarding this
correspondence.

Sincerety,
Kgrakis Enginegring, LLC

7z

erron S. Konakis, P.E.
Consulting Civil Engineer

Attachments: Budget Spread Sheet
Location Plan







East Elko 1-80 Bore and Case at Zaga Way
Kittric : Drainage

ltem Description Quan. [unitl 1 Init Cnet Amount
Preliminary Estimate of Construc n

1 Mobilization and Demobilization Costs 1 EA $ 25000.00 $ 25,000.00
2 Excavate Bore Pits to Design Depths 2 EA $ 850000 $ 17,000.00
3 Bore and Jack 24-Inch Diameter Casing B¢ =zath 1-80

Right of Way - bore from low side of I-80 360 LF $ 790.00 $284,400.00
4 Provide and Install 12-Inch Diameter Sewer Pipe inside

the Steel Casing with Centralizers 360 LF % 40.00 $ 14,400.00
5 Provide and Construct 12-inch Diameter Si  itary Sewer Stubouts

on each side if the 1-80 Sewer Bore (20' x 4 each) 80 LF $% 60.00 $ 4,800.00
6 Construct Sanitary Sewer Manholes on Both Sides of

the 1-80 Sewer Crossing 2 EA $ 580000 $ 11,600.00
7 Cnnetraction Contingency @ 10% @ 2R 79000

* mount Estimated for 1-80 12-Inch @ Sani 'y Sewer Crossing Construction: $392,920.00

Design Engineering Cost Estimate
8 Engineering Design - Prepare Construction Plans 1 LS $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00
Excavate 2-Test Pits and Provide Soils Report f~r Ror 1 LS $§ 650000 $ 6,00

o

Estimate for Engineering Costs :  $ 26,500.00

Total Amount Estimated for Construction & Engineering :  $419,420.00

Pe :10f1




Agenda Item I11.B.

9.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for
Revocable Permit No. 5-18, filed by Elite Storage & R.V., LLC. to occupy a portion
of 12t Street Right-of-Way to accommodate a sign, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information: Elite Storage & R.V. LLC. is currently under construction
on their storage units at the intersection of 12t Street and Opal Drive. If approved,
this will be the location of their sign for the business. CL

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: License Agreement, Staff Report and Application
Recommended Motion: Recommend to City Council to Approve Revocable Permit 5-
18 for a sign in the 12" Street Right-of-Way subject to execution of a Standard
License Agreement between the Applicant and the City of Elko.

Findings:

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

1. Committee/Other Agency Review: Legal Council

12. Agenda Distribution: Carter Engineering

fanalcartercedive.com

Elite Storage & R.V. LL.C
45 Teton Drive
Lindon, Utah 84042-2272

Created on 12/11/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1




PEVACA DT O T ICENSE £ “ T MENT FOR NN TV USIVE
OCCUPANCY OF RIGHT-UF-WAY FOR FREE-STANDING SIGN

THIS REVOCABL LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR NON-EXCLUSIVE
OCCUPANCY OF RIGHT-OF-WAY (hereinafter the “License Agreement”) is made this
day of , 2018 (hereinafter the “Effective Date’’), by and between the
CITY OF ELKO, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nevada,
hereinafter called the “City of Elko,” and ELITE STORAGE & R.V. LLC, a Utah limited-
liability company, hereinafter called the “Licensee.” The City of Elko and the Licensee may be
referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

A. Licensee owns real property located generally at 1500 Opal Drive, Elko, Nevada;
and

B. Licensee intends to occupy the aforementioned real property for the purpose of
operating a storage unit facility; and

C. Licensee desires to place a free-standing sign within the 12th Street right-of-way,
located generally on the northeast side of 12th Street, east of the intersection with Opal Drive and
west of the intersection with Clarkson Drive, in the City of Elko, State of Nevada (hereinafter the
“Right-of-Way”); and

D. The dimensions and physical appearance of the free-standing sign are shown on
the proposed sign drawing attached to the Application for Revocable Permit to Occupy City of
Elko Property attached at Exhibit C; and

E. The location and physical layout of the real property in relation to placement of
the free-standing sign are more particularly described and shown on the map and plot plan
attached to the Application for Revocable Permit to Occupy City of Elko Property at Exhibits B
and D, respectively; and

F. Licensee has asked the City of Elko for permission to use a portion of the Right-
of-Way for the purpose of } cing the aforementioned free-standing sign in the manner shown on
the Application for Revocable Permit to Occupy City of Elko Property attached at Exhibit A;
and

G. The license granted hereunder does not constitute a sale or lease of property
subject to the requirements of NRS 268.059, et. seq;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the rights and obligations contained herein, it
is agreed as follows:

Page 1 of 5




The City of Elko grants to Licensee, subject to the terms and conditions contained
herein, a non-exclusive, revocable license to use the Right-of-Way for the purposes set forth in
this License Agreement.

The Parties hereto further covenant and agree as follows:

1. TERM: The Term of this License Agreement shall be five (5) years,
commencing on the Effective Date, subject to the termination rights set forth herein; provided,
this License Agreement will automatically renew at the end of the initial term and each term
thereafter for a further term of five (5) years unless any Party gives the other Party written notice
of termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of the relevant term.

2. WAIVER:  Waiver by any Party of any breach of any term, covenant or
condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, condition or
covenant or any subsequent breach of the same, or any other term, condition or covenant herein
contained.

3. NATYOTS:  Any and all notices or demands by or from the City of Elko to the
Licensee, or from the Licensee to the City of Elko shall be in writing and served by certified
mail. Service shall be conclusively deemed made forty-eight (48) hours after the deposit thereof
in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party to who such notice or demand
is to be given and the issuance of a receipt thereof. Any notice or demand to the City of Elko
may be given to: City of Elko, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada 89801, or at such other place
or places as shall be designated by the City of Elko from time to time. Any notice or demand to
the Licensee shall be mailed to:

Elite Storage & R.V. LL.C
45 Teton Drive
Lindon, UT 84042-2272

4. MADDAUVERMENTS REPAIRS, MAINTER ARAE AN [JST 0T
THE PROPER1Y:

(a) Licensee shall have the license to enter upon and occupy the Right-of-
Way to place a free-standing sign, provided, Licensee must receive the prior consent of the City
of Elko before entering upon the Right-of-Way and must thereafter act in accordance with its
directions.

(b) Licensee shall maintain the free-standing sign in good repair, shall
promptly repair all damage and/or deterioration, and shall otherwise keep the free-standing sign
in a clean and orderly condition at all times.

(c) Licensee shall maintain the Right-of-Way in a manner that is acceptable to

the City of Elko at all times.

Page 2 of 5§




(d) Licensee shall secure any permits required in connection with the
activities authorized hereunder and shall comply with all applicable Federal, state and local
statutes, ordinances or regulations.

(e) Licensee’s violation of any provision of this License Agreement, to
include any violation of the Elko City Code, shall constitute immediate grounds for revocation of
this License Agreement by the City of Elko.

63 The aforementioned free-standing sign shall be removed by Licensee upon
request by the City of Elko within thirty (30) days of notice as provided herein in the event of
revocation or termination hereof.

5. RY: The City of Elko specifically reserves the right of
entry upon the Right-of-Way by any authorized officer, engineer, employee, agent or contractor
of the City of Elko at any time and for any and all purposes.

6. INDEMNIE CATION: Notwithstanding any other provision contained
herein, Licensee hereby agrees to hold harmless, indemnify and defend the City of Elko,
including, without limitation, the City of Elko’s agents, employees and contractors (the “City’s
Representatives™) against any and all claims, demands, actions, suits, liability, cost and expense,
including defense, expenses, (to include, without limitation, suits for damages and injuries to
persons or property (collectively “claims™) arising out of Licensee’s acts or omissions in
connection with the activities contemplated by this License Agreement, to include the acts or
omissions of Licensee’s contractor(s) and its/their subcontractors, except to the extent such
claims are caused by or arise out of the negligence of the City of Elko or the City’s
Representatives.

7. INSURANCE: Licensee agrees to purchase insurance or otherwise arrange
at its own expense and to keep such insurance in force at all times this License Agreement is in
effect, as Hllows:

(a) Workmen's Compensation Insurance covering all of Licensee’s employees
and shall require all consultants or other third parties engaged in the activities contemplated by
this License Agreement to furnish evidence of appropriate workmen's compensation coverage or
that they are a self-insured employer.

(b) Comprehensive General Public Liability Insurance against claims for
bodily injury or death of any person and property damage arising out of or resulting from
Licensee's activities and the use of the Right-of-Way. Such insurance shall be in an amount not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate. Licensee shall furnish to
the City of Elko proof that such insurance has been obtained and is in force.

Page 3 of §




(c) General Vehicle Liability Insurance against claims for injury or death of
any person and property damage arising out of or resulting from Licensee’s operation of any
motor vehicle used in connection with the activities contemplated herein. Such insurance shall
be in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate.
This policy shall include vehicles operated by Licensee and Licensee’s agents, employees and
contractors. Licensee shall furnish to the City of Elko proof that such insurance has been
obtained and is in force.

(d) The City of Elko shall be provided with copies of all insurance policies
required under this License Agreement.

(e) The foregoing insurance may be part of a blanket policy.

63) Notwithstanding anything contained herein, Licensee shall be entitled to
self-insure with respect to any of the required coverage herein. Additionally, Licensee’s
insurance coverage shall only apply to the extent of its indemnity obligations.

8. TERMINATION: Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, the
City of Elko may immediately revoke and terminate this License Agreement for any violation of
the terms or conditions hereof prior to the expiration of the Term or any extension thereof;
provided, either Party may terminate this License Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ prior written
notice to the other Party.

In the event of the termination of the license granted hereunder prior to the end of
the Term, or upon notice for any other reason permitted hereunder, Licensee shall promptly,
peaceably and quietly leave, surrender and yield to the City of Elko the Right-of-Way in good
order, condition and repair, after performing all repairs to the site needed to return it to its prior
condition.

9. GENERAL COVENANTS:

(a) GOVERNING LAW, Itis agreed that this License Agreement shall be
governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the Laws of the State of Nevada.

(b) MQ JVICATION OF £ “™"EMENT. Any modification of this
License Agreement or additional obligation assumed by either party in connection with this
License Agreement shall be binding only if evidenced in writing signed by each party or an
authorized representative of each Party.

(©) ATTORNEY FEES. In the event the either party is required to pursue
any action to enforce any term or condition in this License Agreement and prevails in said action,
then said party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and court costs from the other party.

Page 4 of 5




(d) ASSIGNM*NT NE RIF™YT< AND DUTIES. Licensee may not assign
its rights or duties under this License Agreement without the advance written consent by the City
of Elko. There is no restriction on assignment with respect to the City of Elko.

(e) N ToInn DARTY BE®™7"7" * ™78, Except as expressly provided
herein, this License Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any third party other
than the respective successors and assigns of a Party.

3 ENTIRE AGREEME™T™, This Agreement constitutes the entire
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior
understandings, agreements, or representations between the Parties, written or oral, to the extent
they relate in any way to the right to the activities contemplated hereby; provided, to the extent
not inconsistent with this License Agreement, all terms and conditions of the “Application for
Revocable Permit to Occupy City of Elko Property,” to include all representations of Licensee,
the proposed sign drawing at Exhibit C, the legal description at Exhibit A, and the map and plot
plan at Exhibits B and D, are incorporated herein by this reference.

(2) FACSIMILE AND COUNT"RPART SIGNATURES. Facsimile and
counterpart signatures shall have the same force and etfect as original signatures or the signatures
of all parties on the same document.

(hy  JURISDICTION AND VENUE. The District Court for the Fourth
Judicial District Court in and for the County of Elko, State of Nevada, shall have jurisdiction and
venue over all disputes arising from or in relation to this License Agreement.

(1) TERMS INCLUSIV™ As used herein, the terms the City of Elko and
Licensee shall include the plural as well as the singular, and the feminine as well as the
masculine and the neuter.

() TIME. Time is of the essence.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this license the day and year first
above written.

ELITE STORAGE & R.V. LLC.: CITY OF ELKO:

By: By:

CHRIS J. JOHNSON, Mayor

Title: ATTEST:

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk

Page 5 of 5




RECEIVED
DEC 102018

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF AREA FOR REVOCABLE PERMIT
TO OCCUPY CITY OF ELKO PROPERTY FOR
ELITE STORAGE & R.V,, LLC

December 9, 2018

A parcel of land lying within the Right of Way for Twelfth Street located in Section
14, T.34 N, R.55 E., M.D.B. & M,, City of Elko, Nevada, more particularly described as
follows:

Commencing at the centerline intersection of Twelfth Street and Opal Drive as
shown on the Final Map of Riverside Condominiums — Phase 1 on file in the office of the
Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as File No. 605491, thence N 64° 22’ 31” E, 139.48
feet to Corner No. 1, the True Point of Beginning;

Thence N 07° 09’ 25” E, 20.00 feet Corner No. 2;

Thence S 82° 50’ 35” E, 20.00 feet to Corner No. 3;

Thence S 07° 09’ 25” W, 20.00 feet to Corner No. 4;

Thence N 82° 50’ 35” W, 20.00 feet to Corner No. 1, the point of beginning,
containing 400 square feet, more or less.

The Basis of Bearings for the above described parcel is the Final Map of Riverside
Condominiums — Phase 1 on file in the office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada,
as File No. 605491

Reference is hereby made to Exhibit B, Map to Accompany Application for
Revocable Permit to Occupy City of Elko Property for Elite Storage & R.V., LLC attached

hereto and made a part hereof.

Prepared by Robert E. Morley 640 Idaho Street
High Desert Engineering Elko, Nevada 89801






















Agenda ltem [V.A.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: First reading of Ordinance No. 838, an ordinance approving an amendment to
the development agreement between the City of Elko, Nevada, a municipal
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nevada (‘““City”), and Copper
Trails LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“Owner”), specifically to add
Phase 2 of the Copper Trails subdivision and impose a bottom of finished floor
elevation for all future placement of principal building sup-gradient of the Eight-
Mile drainage easement of two feet higher than the back of curb elevation as
measured at the front lot line adjacent to the street of record, and to direct Staff to
set the matter for second reading, public hearing and possible adoption, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: December 18, 2018
3. Agenda Category: ORDINANCE
4. Time Required: 10 Minutes
5. Background Information: Pursuant to N.R.S. 278.0205 and Section 3-2-26(F) of the
City Code, Council may amend or cancel binding development agreements by
mutual consent of the parties to the agreement or their successors in interest if it
finds that the amendment to the agreement is consistent with the Master Plan. The
amendment shall be approved by adoption of an ordinance. In this instance, the
owner has requested the City amend the approved development agreement and
Staff is in agreement. SAW
6. Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A
7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required
8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance, amended Development Agreement,

and other related correspondence

9. Recommended Motion: Conduct First Reading of Ordinance No. 838 and direct City
Staff to set the matter for Second Reading, Public Hearing and possible adoption.

9. Prepared By: Scott A. Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
10. Committee/Other Agency Review:

1. Council Action:

13. Agenda Distribution: Copper Trails, LLC; luke fitzgerald <elkoluke@gmail.com>

Created on 12/13/18




CITY OF ELKO
ORDINANCE NO. 838

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA, A MUNICIPAL
CORPORATION AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
(“CITY”), AND COPPER TRAILS LLC, A NEVADA LIMITED LIAl LITY COMPANY
(“OWNER?”), SPECIFICALLY TO ADD PHASE 2 OF THE COl ER TRAILS
SUBDIVISION AND IMPOSE A BOTTOM OF FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATIONS FOR
ALL FUTURE PLACEMENT OF PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS UP-GRADIENT OF THE
EIGHT-MILE DRAINAGE EASEMENT OF TWO FEET HIGHER THAN THE BACK
OF CURB ELEVATION AS MEASURED AT THE FRONT LOT LINE ADJACENT TO
THE STREET OF RECORD.

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statutes, Section 278.0205 and Elko City Code, Section 3-
2-26 F. authorize the City to amend or cancel binding development agreements by mutual
consent of the parties to the agreement or their successors in interest; and

WHEREAS, City an Owner entered into a Development Agreement under Ordinance 755
on August 14, 2012;

WHEREAS, City and Owner amended the Development Agreement reducing the front
yard setback from fifteen (15) feet stipulated under Ordinance 755 to ten (10) feet under
Ordinance 769 on February 12, 2013;

WHEREAS, Owner has completed development of the Phase 1 subdivision and is in the
process of developing residential dwelling units upon the lots of record;

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement, as amended, allows for inclusion of area
shown in Exhibit C of Ordinance 755 and Ordinance 769 for development under the terms of the
agreement, subject to amendment of the agreement;

WEREAS, Owner has applied for a zone amendment for the area shown in Exhibit C for
a change of zone from Residential Single Family (R1) and Residential Multifamily (R3) to Single
Family and Multi-Family (R) under application 8-18 of which does not change the development
standards, is identified as a corresponding zone district to the master plan land use designation of
medium density residential and is therefore considered not a material change;

WHEREAS, Owner is the owner of certain real property in the City of Elko, Nevada,
consisting of 29 proposed lots located on Platinum Drive and Quartz Drive, as shown on the
Preliminary Plat of Copper Trails Subdivision Phase 2 and shown on Exhibit B attached hereto,
which property is legally described in Exhibit A tached hereto (the “Property”);

WHEREAS, City has requested an amendment to the development standards as shown on
Exhibit D attached hereto adding a stipulation imposing a bottom of finished floor elevation for




placement of all future principal buildings up-gradient of the proposed eight-mile drainage
easement, as shown on Exhibit B, of two (2) feet higher than the back of curb elevation as
measured at the front lot line adjacent to the street of record;

WHEREAS, the required has been followed by City in accordance with State law and the
Elko City Code in anticipation of amending the previously approved development agreement, as
amended, with Owner. Accordingly, the Elko City Council has determined that the Amended
Development Agreement is consistent with the City’s Master Plan; and

WHEREAS, and

WHEREAS, Owner is also the owner of a larger parcel of real property which contains
the Property and is planned as a similar development, as shown on the Master Plan for Copper
Trails and shown on Exhibit C attached hereto, all or part of which may become subject to the
terms of the Agreement in the future, subject to amendment in accordance with Section 4 herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ELKO, NEVADA.

SECTION 1. APPROVAL. That pursuant to the mutual consent of the Owner and the City of
Elko, the Development Agreement between the City of Elko, Nevada and Copper Trails, LLC, a
Nevada Limited Liability Company executed by the parties on February 12, 2013 , is hereby
amended by the Elko City Council to include Phase 2 consisting of 29 proposed lots and an
amendment to the development standards as shown on Exhibit D attached hereto adding a
stipulation imposing a bottom of finished floor elevation for placement of all future principal
buildings up-gradient of the proposed eight-mile drainage easement, as shown on Exhibit B, of
two (2) feet higher than the back of curb elevation as measured at the front lot line adjacent to the
street of record.

SECTION 2. MASTER PLAN. The City Council finds that the amended Development
Agreement is consistent with the City Master Plan.

SECTION 3. RECORDATION. Within a reasonable time after the effective date of this
ordinance, the clerk of the City of Elko shall cause the original amended Development
Agreement to be recorded with the Elko County ecorder. Upon recordation, the agreement
binds all parties and their successors in interest for the duration of the agreement.

SECTION 4, AMENMMENT OP “ANCELLATION. The agreement between the City of Elko
and Copper Trails, LLC, may be turther amended or canceled, in whole or in part, by mutual
consent of the parties to the agreement or their s :cessors in interest, except that if the governing
body determines, upon a review of the development of the land held at least once every 24
months, that the terms of conditions of the agreement are not being complied with, it may cancel
or amend the agreement without the consent of the breaching party.




Notice of intention to amend or cancel any portion of the agreement shall be subject to any notice
requirements required by Nevada Revised Statutes. The governing body, after conducting a
public hearing, may approve any amendment to the agreement by ordinance if the amendment is
consistent with the master plan.

SECTION 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but
only to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 6. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, the invalidity, unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall
not affect any remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 7. Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its passage
in a newspaper printed and published in the City of Elko, for at least one publication

SECTION 8. This ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section 7.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of January, 2019, by the following vote of the Elko
City Council.

AYES:
NAYES: None
ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

APPROVED this day of January, 2019.
CITY OF ELKO
By:
REECE KEENER, Mayor
ATTEST:

KELLY WUOLDRIDGE, City Clerk




SECON™ AMENDED DE" ™" )P""=NT AGREEMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Second Amended
Agreement”) is made by and between the C r of Elko, Nevada, a municipal corporation
and political subdivision of the State of Nevada (“City”), and Copper Trails LLC, a
Nevada limited liability company (“Owner”).

DECITAILI ©

A. Nevada Revised Statutes, Sections 278.0201 to 278.0207 and Elko City
Code, Sec. 3-2-26 authorize the City to enter into binding development agreements with
persons having legal or equitable interests in real property for the development of such
property.

B. The City, by and through the Elko City Council and other subordinate
public agencies and administrative departments, has the authority to regulate all matters
relating to the construction, maintenance and safety of buildings, structures and
property within the City pursuant to Elko City Charter, Section 2.200.

C. The Owner is the owner of a larger parcel of real property (hereinafter the
“Parcel”) which contains the Property subject to this Second Amended Agreement. The
Parcel has been planned for development since at least 2012, as shown on the Master
Plan for Copper Trails and Exhibit C hereto. It is the intent of the Parties that the Owner
will develop additional parts of the Parcel over time. Accordingly, all or additional parts
of the Parcel may become subject to the terms of this Second Amended Agreement in
the future, subject to amendment in accordance with Section 12 herein.

D. On August 14, 2012, the City and the Owner entered into a Development
Agreement pursuant to Ordinance 755 for the development of 27 proposed lots located
within the Parcel (hereafter the “Development Agreement”).

E. The Development Agreement, as amended, allows for the inclusion of the
area shown in Exhibit C of Ordinance 755 and Ordinance 769 in order to permit
development under the terms of the Development Agreement, as amended.

F. On February 12, 2013, the City and Owner amended the Development
Agreement (hereinafter the “First Amended Agreement”) pursuant to which the Parties
agreed to reduce the front yard setback from fifteen (15) feet as required under
Ordinance 755 to ten (10) feet pursuant to Ordinance 769.

G. The Owner has completed development of the Phase 1 subdivision within

the Parcel and is in the process of developing residential dwelling units upon the lots of
record.

P: :10f18




H. The Owner is the owner of certain real property located within the Parcel
consisting of 29 proposed lots located on Platinum Drive and Quartz Drive (hereinafter
the “Property”), as shown on the Preliminary Plat of Copper Trails Subdivision Phase 2
and Exhibit B hereto. A legal description of the Property is set forth at Exhibit A hereto.

1. Under Application 8-18, the Owner has applied for a zone change for the
area shown in Exhibit C, which zone change, if approved, would change the zone from
Residential Single Family (R1) and Residential Multifamily (R3) to Single Family and
Multi-Family (R). The proposed zone change does not change the :velopment
standards. Moreover, as the Multi-Family (R) zone district is identified as a
corresponding zone district to the master plan land use designation of medium density
residential, the zone change is not considered to be a material change;

J. The City has requested an amendment to the development standards as
shown on Exhibit D attached hereto to add the requirement of a finished floor elevation
for placement of all future principal buildings up-gradient of the proposed eight-mile
drainage easement, as shown on Exhibit B, at an elevation two (2) feet higher than the
back of curb elevation as measured at the front lot line adjacent to the street of record.

K. The City has complied with the applicable procedural requirements set
forth in the Nevada Revised Statutes and the Elko City Code in anticipation of amending
the Development Agreement, as amended.

L. The Elko City Council has determined that this Second Amended
Agreement is consistent with the City’s Master Plan.

M. Owner wishes to amend the Development Agreement, as amended, in
accordance with Section 5.1 and Section 12, for the purpose of developing Copper
Trails Phase 2 Units 1-3.

N. The City finds that: (i) the lack of certainty in the approval of development
projects can result in a waste of resources, escalate the cost of housing and other
development to the consumer, and discourage investment in and commitment to the
comprehensive planning, which is needed in order to maximize the efficient utilization of
resources at the most economical cost to the public; and (ii) providing an assurance to
Owner for a development project that upon approval of the project, the applicant may
proceed with the project in accordance with existing City requirements, subject to
conditions of approval, will strengthen the City’'s planning process, encourage
participation by developers in comprehensive planning, and reduce the cost of
development.

0. The City Council may adopt an ordinance approving this Second

Amended Agreement and this Second Amended Agreement will be effective upon the
effective date of that ordinance.

Page 2 of 18




NOW, THEREFORE, City and Owner agree as follows:

1 DEFINED TERMS. The Terms set forth below in this Section shall have
the meanings unless otherwise specifically stated in this Second Amended Agreement.

1.1 “City Approvals” shall mean all land use and other City approvals
which Owner may or is required to apply for to complete all or part of the “Project” (as
defined below) and the construction of the infrastructure for and improvements related
to the Project, including, without limitation, all master plans; zoning changes; variances,
development plans; subdivision improvement agreements; building plans and permits;
specifications; landscape plans; grading plans and permits; improvement plans; parcel
maps; tentative subdivision maps; final subdivision maps (including, without limitation
phased final subdivision maps); amendments to subdivision maps; lot line adjustments;
re-subdivisions; use permits and certificates of occupancy; flood control plans; water
acquisition and usage approvals, permits and plans; and all other matters related to
development of the Project which require approval by the City.

1.2 “Effective Date” means the date of enactment of the ordinance
approving this Second Amended Agreement.

1.3 ‘I~ St--1ards” means all rules, regulations, ordinances and
other requirements of City, or those enforced by City, which are in force upon execution
of this Second Amended Agreement (including City’s Master Plan and Zoning Code), as
modified by this Second Amended Agreement, and, in particular as modified by the
Special Development Standards attached to this Second Amended Ag :ment as
Exhibit D, or as they may be modified thereafter in a manner consistent with Nevada
Revised Statutes, Section 278.0201(3), governing (i} permitted uses of the Property; (ii)
timing of implementation of the development of the Property; (iii) the density and
intensity of use of the Property; (iv) design, improvement, construction and building
standards; (v) occupancy of the Property; and (vi) specifications applicable to the
Project. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section, (a) in the event that
federal or state laws or regulations, enacted after the date of this Second Amended
Second Amended Agreement, prevent or preclude compliance with one or more
provisions of this Second Amended Agreement, then such provisions of this Second
Amended Agreement shall be modified or suspended as may be necessary to comply
with such federal or state laws or regulations; and (b) Owner agrees to comply with any
such changes to this Second Amended Agreement pursuant to subpart (a) to comply
with the federal or state laws or regulations. For the purposes of this Second Amended
Agreement, the term “construction and building standards” shall mean requirements of
the City which are of general application, and which establish requirements for the
building, construction and installation of structures and associated improvements to real
property.

Page 3 of 18




1.4  “Meas''re ~f Correction” means any action the City requires the
Owner to take in order to optain a City Approval.

1.5 *“M~-+qa3ge” means a mortgage, deed of trust or similar security
instrument or transaction with respect to the Property, or any portion thereof or any
interest therein, which is pledged as security, contracted for in good faith and for fair
value in connection with the Project.

1.6 “Mortgagee” means the holder of the beneficial interest under a
Mortgage.

1.7  “hamnr " means the individual or entity having a legal or equitable
interest in the Property, inciuding, without limitation any successor-in-interest of Owner,
subject to any limitations on assignment.

1.8  “Person” means any individual, partnership, limited-liability
company, corporation or other legal entity.

1.9 “Speci~!' "~~l~pment Standards” means the requirements
attached to this Second Amenaea Agreement as Exhibit D which differ from the existing
requirements of the City, or those enforced or interpreted by City which are in force
upon execution of this Second Amended Agreement (including the C /'s Master Plan)
governing (i) permitted uses of the Property; (ii) timing of implementation of the
development of the Property; (iii) the density and intensity of use of the Property; (iv)
design, improvement, construction and building standards; (v) occupancy of the
Property; and (vi) specifications applicable to the Project.

1.10 “Project” is the development approved by City for the Property, to
specifically include the construction of 29 otherwise nonconforming single family
residences, one (1) on each lot of the Property, including, without limitation, all
amendments and modifications to the Special Development Standards pursuant to this
Second Amended Agreement; and including any other development approved by the
City and added to this agreement by amendment as defined in section 12 herein.

1.11 “Property” is the real property described and depicted in Exhibits A
and B to this Second Amended Agreement; and including any other real property added
to this Second Amended Agreement by amendment as defined in section 12 herein.

2 INCORPORATION OF RECITALS AND EXHIBITS. All Recitals to this
Second Amended Agreement and the exhibits set forth below are incorporated into this
Second Amended Agreement by this reference:

Exhibit Designat'~1 Description

Page 4 of 18




Property Description

Map of Property

Master Plan for Copper Trails
Special Development Standards

oOm>

3 INTEREST OF OWNER. Owner represents and warrants that Owner
holds title to the Property in fee simple and that such title is held solely and without joint
tenants, tenants in common, or encumbrances other than those specifically disclosed to
the City in a preliminary title report and approved of by the City prior to the Effective
Date.

4 EFFECT OF AGREEMENT ON LAND USE REGULATIONS.

4.1  Vested Ric+rt to Develop. Provided Owner strictly complies with all
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, to include requirements incorporated
herein by reference, Owner shall have the vested right to develop the Project on the
Property in accordance with the Effective Standards, as modified by the Special
Development Standards pursuant to the terms of this Second Amended Agreement and
Section 278.0201 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, except as otherwise specifically
provided in this Second Amended Agreement.

4.2 Application of Ef¥~~{" - ™" " ~ds. The permitted uses of the
Property, the density and intensity or use, the maximum height, build and size of
proposed buildings, provisions for reservation or dedication of land for public purposes
and the location of public improvements, location of public utilities and all other terms
and conditions of development applicable to the Property shall be those set forth in tt
Special Development Standards listed herein and attached hereto as Exhibit D.

5 OWNER AND ~'TY RFSPNNS WARRANTIES AM™
ASSURANCES
51  Assur~r~ne to Mhamanr The Parties acknowledge that the public

benefits to be provided by tne Uwner to City pursuant to this Second Amended
Agreement are in consideration for and reliance upon assurances that City will permit
development of the Property in accordance with the terms of this Second Amended
Agreement. Accordingly, City agrees that it will not attempt to restrict or limit the
development of the Property through the imposition of new requirements not
contemplated by this Second Amended Agreement; provided, nothing herein shall be
interpreted so as to exempt the Owner from need to obtain City Approvals. City
acknowledges that the Owner cannot, at this time, predict the timing or rate at which the
Property will be developed. The timing and rate of development depend on numerous
factors, such as market demand, interest rates, absorption, completion schedules, and
other factors which are not within the control of the Owner or the City. Except as
otherwise provided in this Second Amended Agreement, the Owner shall have the

Page 5 of 18




vested right to develop the Property at such rate and at such time as the Owner deems
appropriate within the exercise of the Owner’s sole subjective business judgment,
notwithstanding the adoption of an initiative after the Effective Date by City’s electorate
to the contrary. It is the intent of the Parties that no City moratorium or other similar
limitation relating to the rate or timing of the development of the Project or any portion
thereof, whether adopted by initiative or otherwise, shall apply to the Property to the
extent such moratorium or other similar limitation is in conflict with the express
provisions of this Second Amended Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing
in this Section shall excuse or release the Owner from any obligation set forth in this
Second Amended Agreement which is required to be performed on or before a specified
calendar date or event, irrespective of whether the Owner proceeds with the Project.

The Owner shall present the Final Subdivision Map for the approval of the subdivision of
the Property to the City Council within four (4) years of the Effective Date of the
approval of the Preliminary Map.

The Owner shall have the option to add to this Second Amended Agreement additional
development in the larger parcel of real property shown on the Master Plan for Copper
Trails and shown on Exhibit C to this Second Amended Agreement, subject to the
necessary approvals by the City and an amendment to this Second Amended
Agreement in accordance with Section 12 herein.

6 CITY APPROVALS AND OTHER GOVERNMENTAL PERMIT<

6.1  City Approvals and E*“~-tive Standards. The City will cooperate
with the Owner in obtaining all City Approvals. In the event the City does not grant a
requested City Approval, the City will provide the Owner with a specific written list of
reasons why the approval was not granted. Every listed reason for denying a requested
City Approval shall be consistent with the Effective Standards. The Owner’s engineer
shall submit each Measure of Correction which shall be consistent with the Effective
Standards and approved by the City Engineering Department. If the Owner resubmits
an application for a City Approval incorporating all or substantially all suggested
Measures of Correction, the City shall not unreasonably withhold the applicable City
Approval.

6.2  Processing of City Approval. City must process all City Approvals
within a reasonable time. Upon request from Owner, City must promptly inform Owner
of all necessary information and submission requirements in connection with each
application for a City Approval.

7 TERM. The term of this Second Amended Agreement ("Term") shall
commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate at midnight on the day before the
Ninety-Ninth (99th) annual anniversary of the Effective Date, unless the Term is
otherwise extended in accordance with NRS 278.0201.

Page 6 of 18



8 PROJECT CHANGES' P=PM|TTED DEVIATIONS. No material or
substantial change, maodification, revision or alteration to the Project ("Material Change")
shall be made without the prior written consent of the City. In addition, no Material
Change to the Project shall be effective unless and until the parties have executed and
delivered an appropriate amendment to this Second Amended Agreement.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section, the City recognizes that in the
development of the Project, Owner shall be required, and is hereby permitted, to deviate
in non-material respects from the approved description of the Project, and that any such
“non-material deviation” shall not require amendment to this Second Amended
Agreement or any existing City Approvals (except as set forth in the next sentence) or
other approvals. Any such non-material deviations shall be approved by the City
Manager or the City Manager’s designee prior to Owner's implementation of the
changes, provided such non-material deviations otherwise comply with the City Code
and other generally applicable City requirements, and approval of any such
non-material change shall not be unreasonably withheld. The City, in its reasonable
discretion, shall determine whether a requested change is a Material Change.

9 DEFAULT. Either party shall be in default (“Default”) under this
agreement upon the occurrence of any of the events described in this Section.

9.1  Failure of a party to perform any obligation required of such party
pursuant to this Second Amended Agreement within ninety (90) days after written notice
of Default from the other party demanding performance of the obligation; provided,
however, that if the nature of the obligation is such that it reasonably cannot be
performed in ninety (90) days, then the party receiving the notice of Default shall not be
in Default if such party commences the cure of the alleged Default within such ninety
(90) day period and diligently continues the cure to completion. Any notice of Default
given pursuant to this Section shall describe the obligation alleged to be in Default in
reasonable detail, shall list the authority (including reference to the appropriate
document(s)) pursuant to which the obligation is due, and shall not be sent until on or
after the due date of the obligation.

9.2  The cure periods of this Section 9 are subject to Section 13 below
(Mortgagee Protection) and shall be extended to the periods described in Section 13 for
the cure of a Default if there is a Mortgage on the Property and Owner is the party
alleged to be in Default.

9.3 Force Mei~'re. The obligations by any Party hereunder shall not be
deemed to be in default where aelays or failures to perform are due to any cause
without the fault and beyond the reasonable contro! of such Party, including, to the
extent applicable, the following: war; insurrection; strikes; walk-outs; the unavailability or
shortage of labor, material, or equipment; riots; floods; earthquakes; hazardous waste
and the remediation thereof; geologic or hydrologic features which could not have been

Page 7 of 18




discovered through reasonable diligence prior to the Effective Date; fires; acts of God;
and governmental restrictions imposed or mandated by other governmental entities
which could not have been foreseen prior to the Effective Date. (hereinafter “force
majeure”). If written notice of such force majeure is provided to the other Party within a
reasonable time, but in no case more than ten (10) days, an extension of time for such
cause will be granted by the other Party for the period of the resulting delay, or longer
as may be mutually agreed upon by the Parties in writing. In no event shall adverse
market or financial conditions constitute an event of force majeure extending the time
for such Party's performance hereunder. The Term of this Second Amended Agreement
shall be extended by an event of force majeure by an amount equal to the time that the
force majeure has prevented the Party's performance hereunder, provided the party
seeking the extension has satisfied the requirements of this Section.

10 D=''ELOPMENT FEES. During the Term of this Second Amended
Agreement, City shall not levy or require any site-specific Development Fees with
respect to the Project (i.e., Development Fees that are not of general application and
are imposed only on the Property), except those which are set forth in this Second
Amended Agreement and those which are in effect on the Effective Date of this Second
Amended Agreement.

11 PERIODI(‘, CIT'V DLC\/IC\AL f\F ADDEE_MEMT MNNRADI II\MI‘E. Clty Sha”
review this Second Amended Agreement at least once every twelve (12) months after
the Effective Date for compliance by the Owner. During each periodic review, Owner
shall provide City with any information reasonably required to demonstrate Owner's
compliance with this Second Amended Agreement.

12 AMEMDMENT - This Second Amended Agreement may only be amended
or canceled througn a writien instrument signed by the Parties and approved by the City
Council which states that it is an amendment to or cancellation of this Second Amended
Agreement, provided, that the City shall at all times have the right to amend or cancel
this Second Amended Agreement, in whole or in part, in accordance with NRS
278.0205.

13 MORTGAGE PROTECTION. This Second Amended Agreement shall be
superior and senior to any lien placed upon the Property (or any portion thereof),
including, without limitation, the lien of any Mortgage. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no
breach hereof shall defeat, render invalid, diminish or impair the lien of any Mortgage
made in good faith and for value, but all of the terms and conditions contained in this
Second Amended Agreement shall be binding and effective against any Person
(including any Mortgagee) who acquires title to the Property (or any portion thereof) by
foreclosure, trustee's sale, deed in lieu of foreclosure or otherwise.

13.1 Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 13, no
Mortgagee, in its capacity as Mortgagee, shall have any obligation or duty under this

Page 8 of 18




Second Amended Agreement to construct or complete the construction of
improvements in connection with the Project or to guaranty such construction of
completion; provided, however, that: (i) a Mortgagee shall not be entitled to develop the
Property or devote the Property to any uses or to construct any improvements thereon
other than the development of the uses and improvements provided for or authorized by
this Second Amended Agreement, and subject to all of the standard terms and
conditions hereof, or as otherwise permitted under any of the other Effective Standards;
and (ii) no Mortgagee or successor thereof shall be entitled to the rights and benefits of
Owner hereunder or entitled to enforce the provisions of this Second Amended
Agreement against City unless and until such Mortgagee or successor thereof becomes
an assignee of Owner pursuant to the terms of this Second Amended Agreement. Any
Mortgagee or successor thereof who comes into possession of the Property (or any
portion thereof) pursuant to foreclosure of a Mortgage or deed of trust, deed in lieu of
foreclosure, or sale in foreclosure, shall take the Property (or such portion thereof)
subject to any pro rata claims for payment or charges against the Property (or such
portion thereof) which accrue prior to the time such Mortgagee or successor thereof
comes into possession of the Property or portion thereof.

13.2 If City receives written notice from a Mortgagee requesting a copy
of any notice of Default given to Owner pursuant to this Second Amended Agreement
and specifying the notice address for the Mortgagee, then City shall deliver to the
Mortgagee, concurrently with notice to Owner, any notice of Default given to Owner.
Each Mortgagee shall have the right (but not the obligation) to cure or remedy, on
behalf of Owner, any alleged Default of Owner. Provided the Mortgagee gives prompt
written notice to the City of its intent to cure, the cure period shall be equal to the cure
period applicable to the Owner plus thirty (30) days and shall commence on the date the
Mortgagee receives notice of the alleged Default. If the alleged Default is of a nature
which can only be remedied or cured through Mortgagee obtaining possession of the
Property or any portion thereof, such Mortgagee shall seek to obtain such possession
with diligence, and the Owner will diligently cooperate therewith, and the Mortgagee
shall thereafter remedy or cure the Default within one hundred and twenty (120) days
after obtaining possession of the Property. If City fails to give the notice required by this
Section, City shall be deemed to have complied with this Section if: (i) City has not done
anything to impair the lien of the Mortgagee that did not receive the required notice of
the Owner default; and (ii) City subsequently provides the Mortgagee in question proper
notice and opportunity to cure as required by this Section. Nothing in this Section 13
shall authorize any Mortgagee to undertake or continue construction of completion of
any improvements comprising the Project (beyond the extent necessary to conserve or
protect improvements or construction already made) or otherwise work toward
development of the Project without first becoming an assignee of Owner pursuant to this
Second Amended Agreement.

14 ASSIGNME=NT AND TRANSF™R. Subject to the provisions of this
Section, Owner shall have the right to sell, assign or otherwise transfer this Second

Page 9 of 18



Amended Agreement, and all or any portion of Owner's rights, duties and obligations
hereunder (collectively, a "Transfer") to any Person at any time throughout the Term
with the prior approval of the City Council. To make an effective Transfer the following
must occur: (i) Owner shall notify the City at least forty-five (45) days rior to the
effective date of the proposed Transfer, which notice shall provide the name and
contact information of the assignee; (ii) the assignee must agree, through a signed
writing in a form reasonably acceptable to the City, to assume all of the Owner's
remaining obligations under this Second Amended Agreement relating to the proposed
Transfer; (iii) all applicable requirements of NRS 278.0201 et seq. must be satisfied,
and (iv) the Transfer must be approved by the City Council. Once a Transfer has
become effective through approval by the City Council, Owner shall be released from all
obligations relating to the portion of such Owner's obligations under this Second
Amended Agreement included in the Transfer.

15 COVENANTS RIINNMINIARWAWITU TUE | ANR: EQUITARI E CEDVITIINEQ.
CC&Rs.

15.1 Subject to the terms of this Second Amended Agreement, all of the
terms, conditions, covenants and provisions of this Second Amended Agreement shall
be binding upon the parties and their respective successors-in-interest, shall be
enforceable as equitable servitudes and shall constitute covenants running with the land
pursuant to applicable law, including, without limitation, Nevada Revised Statutes,
Section 278.0203. Each covenant to do or to refrain from doing some act on the
Property hereunder: (i) is for the benefit of the real property comprising the Property; (ii)
runs with the Property; and (iii) is binding upon and shall benefit each party and each
successive owner during such owner’'s ownership of the Property, or any portion
thereof, and each person having an interest therein derived in any manner.

15.2 All of the Special Development Standards shall be applicable and
enforced during the plan review process for permits and will not be included in CCR's
for the property.

16 INDEMNIFICATION. Owner shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold
harmless City, its officers, agents, employees and representatives from and against any
and all liability for damage or claims for damage for personal injury including death and
claims for property damage relating to the Project which arise from the acts or
omissions of Owner or its contractors, subcontractors, agents, employees or other
representatives; provided, however, that the indemnification and other obligations of
Owner under this Section shall not apply to the extent that the claimed damage or injury
is caused by City, its officers, agents, employees or other representatives.

17 ENFORCEMENT. Throughout the Term, this Second Amended
Agreement shall be enforceable by any Party, despite a change in the Effective
Standards, and each Party hereby consents to and authorizes the other Party to enforce
this Second Amended Agreement through an action for specific performance.

Page 10 of 18



Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall constitute a waiver of any
immunities available to the City with respect to the imposition of monetary damages.
The Parties agree that all acts of the City Council contemplated under this Second
Amended Agreement shall be deemed legislative acts and all acts of City officials
Second Amended contemplated under this Second Amended Agreement shall be
deemed discretionary acts.

18 QEP\IEQ/\I DD(\VICI(\NS'

18.1 Furth~- “¢=''~~nces. Owner shall each promptly sign and deliver any
and all additional documents ana perform any and all acts reasonably necessary to
perform its obligations and carry out the intent expressed in this Second Amended
Agreement. Upon the request of the City at any time, the Owner shall promptly execute,
with acknowledgment or affidavit if reasonably required, and file or record such required
instruments and writings and take any actions as may be reasonably necessary to
implement this Second Amended Agreement or to evidence or consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Second Amended Agreement.

18.2 Estoppel ~~*¥*~~*2, Any Party hereunder may, at any time, deliver
written notice to any other Party requesting such Party to certify in writing that, to the
best knowledge of the certifying Party, (i) this Agreement is in full force and effect and a
binding obligation of the Party; (ii) this Second Amended Agreement has not been
amended or modified either orally or in writing, or if so amended, identifying the
amendments; and (iii) the requesting Party is not in default in the performance of its
obligations set forth in this Second Amended Agreement or, if in default, to describe
therein the nature and amount of any such defaults. (“Estoppel Certificate”). A Party
receiving a request hereunder shall execute and return such certificate within sixty (60)
days following the receipt thereof. Any third party including a Mortgagee shall be entitled
to rely on the Estoppel Certificate.

18.3 Notices. Any notice or other communication given hereunder
(“Notice”) shall be in writing and personally delivered, sent by facsimile, or sent by
United States registered or certified mail or sent by a nationally recognized courier
service such as Federal Express, address as follows:

IF TO CITY: City of Elko
Attn: Development Manager
1751 College Ave.
Elko, NV89801

IF TO OWNER: Copper Trails
Attn: Robert Fitzgerald, Manager
PO Box 8070
Reno, NV 89507

Page 11 of 18




Delivery of any Notice shall be deemed made on the date of its actual
delivery if personally delivered, and on the date indicated in the return receipt or
courier's records as the date of its delivery or first attempted delivery if sent by mail or
courier. Any Notice given by facsimile shall be deemed delivered when received by the
facsimile machine of the receiving party if received before 5:00p.m. (Pacific Time) on
the business day received; otherwise, delivery shall be deemed to have occurred on the
next business day. The transmittal confirmation receipt produced by facsimile machine
of the sending party shall establish a presumptic that the Notice was received. Any
party may change its address or facsimile number for Notice purposes by giving Notice
to the other party.

18.4 Tim~~ D~ricd~ The time periods in this Second Amended
Agreement shall be computed by excluding the first and including the last day. Except
as otherwise provided herein, all time periods measured by days in this Second
Amended Agreement shall be measured by calendar days and, if the day in that period
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, then the last days of the period shall be
deemed to be the next following business day.

18.5 Interpretation. Each party and its counsel have reviewed and
revised this Second Amended Agreement and any rule of contract interpretation to the
effect that ambiguities or uncertainties are to be interpreted against the drafting party or
the party who caused it to exist shall not be employed in the interpretation of this
Second Amended Agreement or any exhibits hereto.

18.6 Severability. If any provision of this Second Amended Agreement
or its application to any party or circumstance is held invalid or unenforceable, then the
remainder of this Second Amended Agreement (and the affected pro' sion to the extent
it is invalidated or deemed unenforceable) shall remain valid and enforceable and in full
force and effect.

18.7 M~ Darnnrehin - This Second Amended Agreement shall not be
construed as creating a partnersnip or joint venture between Owner and City or
between either of them and any third party or cause either of them to be responsible in
any manner for the other's or any third party’'s debts or obligations.

18.8 No Benéeficiaries. No parties other than City and Owner and their
successors and assigns shall have any rights or remedies under or by reason of this
Second Amended Agreement.

18.9 No Waiver. A waiver by either party of a right or of a default by the
other party is effective only if it is in writing signed by the waiving party and shall not be
construed as a waiver of any other right or default.

Page 12 of 18



18.10 Governing Law. This Second Amended Agreement shall be
interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the State of Nevada. Jurisdiction
and venue for any disputes arising in connection with this Second Amended Agreement
or the Property shall be in the District Court of the Fourth Judicial District of the State of
Nevada, in and for the County of Elko.

18.11 7~ *err~~*~ This Second Amended Agreement may be executed
in counterparts, all ot wnich shall constitute one instrument.

18.12 Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and
do not affect this Second Amended Agreement.

18.13 A~~r-dment. This Second Amended Agreement shall only be
amended in the manner provided herein.

18.14 Entire Agreement Binding Effect. This Second Amended
Agreement is intended by City and Owner as the final expression and the complete and
exclusive statement of their agreement with respect to subject matter hereof and any
prior or contemporaneous agreements or understandings, oral or written, which may
contradict, explain or supplement these terms shall not be admissible or effective for
any purpose.

18.15 St~t~ ~ng | oc~' Tonstru Requirem~-*~ All improvements
must comply with all applicable State and Local Building Codes, Mechanical Codes,
Electrical Codes, Plumbing Codes, Fire Codes and Administrative Codes for the
administration of all forgoing Codes. In addition, Owner must comply with all State and
Local Subdivision requirements found in NRS Chapter 278 and the Elko City Code Title
4.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Owner have executed this Second Amended
Agreement as of the date first set forth above.

THE CITY OF ELKO

Reece Keener, Mayor

Page 13 of 18



STATE OF NEVADA)
. S8S.
COUNTY OF ELKO)

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2013 by
Reece Keener, Mayor of the City of Elko.

NO1ARY PUBLIC

Copper Trails LLC

By:
Robert Fitzgerald, Manager

STATE OF NEVADA)
. S8S.
COUNTY OF ELKO)

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2013 by Robert
Fitzgerald, Manager,
Copper Trails LLC .

NOTARY PUBLIC

Page 14 of 18




EYHIB A




EXHIBIT A
COPPER TRAILS, PHASE 2
DE\ ....OPMENT AGREEMENT FOR COPPER TRAILS, LLC
November 12, 2018

A parcel of land located in Section 9, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B. &
M., City of Elko, Nevada, being a ortion of Parcel G, as shown on the Parcel Map for
Copper Trails, LLC, on file in the Office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as
File No. 748288, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the most Southerly Corner of said Parcel G being Corner No. 1, the
True Point of Beginning;

Thence N 48° 02’ 03” W, 165.63 feet along the Southwesterly Line of said Parcel G
to Corner No. 2;

Thence N 82° 17’ 04” W, 35.53 feet along the said Southwesterly Line of Parcel G to
Corner No. 3;

Thence N 41° 57 57” E, 4.00 feet along the said Southwesterly Line of Parcel G to
Corner No. 4;

Thence N 48° 02’ 03” W, 100.00 feet along the said Southwesterly Line of Parcel G
to Comer No. 5;

Thence N 46° 54’ 23” W, 72.35 feet along the said Southwesterly Line of Parcel G to
Comer No. 6;

Thence N 16° 43’ 43” W, 151.21 feet along the said Southwesterly Line of Parcel G
to Corner No. 7;

Thence N 48° 02’ 02” W, 336.11 feet along the said Southwesterly Line of Parcel G
to Corner No. 8;

Thence N 41° 57’ 58” E, 145.00 feet to Corner No. 9;

Thence S 48° 02’ 02” E, 5.35 feet to Corner No. 10;

Thence N 41° 57’ 58” E, 81.81 feet to Corner No. 11;
Continued on Page 2

Prepared by Robert E. Morley, PLS Page 1 High Desert Engineering
640 Idaho Street Elko, NV 89801



Continued from Page 1

Exhibit A, Copper Trails, Phase 2
Development Agreement

For Coppe: ..ails, LLC

Thence S 48° 02’ 02” E, 406.00 feet to Corner No. 12;

Thence S 39° 38’ 21” E, 109.17 feet to Corner No. 13;

Thence S 44° 00’ 35” E, 107.26 feet to Corner No. 14;

Thence S 48° 02’ 31”7 E, 66.45 feet to Corner No. 15;

Thence N 42° 00’ 02” E, 28.17 feet to Corner No. 16;

Thence from a tangent bearing N 42° 00’ 02” E, on a curve to the left with a radius
of 75.00 feet, through a central angle of 20° 42’ 33", for an arc length of 27.11 feet to
Corner No. 17,

Thence S 68° 42’ 31” E, 50.00 feet to Corner No. 18;

Thence S 68° 45’ 41” E, 104.89 feet to Corner No. 19, a point being on the
Southeasterly Line of said Parcel G, also being on the Northwesterly Right of Way of
Copper Street;

Thence S 42° 00 02” W, 376.81 feet along the said Southeasterly Line of Parcel G
and also along the said Northwesterly Right of Way of Copper Street to Corner No. 1, the

point of beginning, containing 5.139 acres, more or less.

Reference is hereby made to Exhibit B, Map to Accompany Copper Trails, Phase 2
Development Agreement for Copper Trails, LLC, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Prepared by Robert E. Morley, PLS
640 Idaho Street

High Desert Engineering
Elko, NV 89801




EXHIE'™ B




S 4619'24°

751.58' N
S 684541 E
COPPER TRAILS, LLC 10488 o
PARCEL G S 68°42'3 E 2
PARCEL MAP ... %000 -
FILE NO. 748288 A = 204233 I
i
- S 4B02'02° E_ 406.00 2
NG \ 2 |MITIRY AVENUE
——eee
N 4157°58" € oo . E
i 81.8¢' AREA TO BE s 436-:";;3 E L
3 DEVELOPED . =
S "8'5‘7;‘3,7' w 2 N 48702'03° W ” > g
. 23 100.00" . N
149.70' . NS v N 821704" W g
N 480203 W P N 480202 W . 485.87 ' g1
2877 I éOPPéR TRALS—UNIT 2
s FILE NO, 731523
olk COPPER_TRAIL N 4375 g
g",‘; [ Mﬂ 5
-z L
I 198.91" M | 1009.99" R4 )
N 480203 W 1206.90'
|
EXHIBIT B
| MAP TO ACCOMPANY
COPPER TRAILS, PHASE 2
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 200 0 200

FOR
COPPER TRAILS, LLC

= e
SCALE: 1°=200’




~peiT e






“THIBITH




Exhibit D

Second Amended Development Agreement Special Development Standards

The Development Standards required under the Single Family Residential District (R1) apply
unless specifically addressed below:

1.

Lots

Minimum lot size shall be 40 feet wide by 80 feet deep.
No lots shall be merged or consolidated.
Boundary line adjustment will not be allowed.

Setbacks fo~ ™~ncipal Buildings

Front Yard Setback: 10 feet
Side Yard Setback: 5 feet.
Rear Yard Setback: 15 feet

Garage Setback: 20 feet
Patio covers, raised decks or similar features: 10 feet

Minimum useable Floor Area

1200 square feet

Fencing
Front yard fences, walls or hedges are prohibited.

Open view fencing is required along any property line that abuts current or planned open
space.

. Exteriors

All exterior finishes shall be brick, stucco, rock or Louisiana-Pacific Smartside® engineered
products or equivalent. Where Smartside® siding is the primary exterior finish; a brick or
rock treatment shall be incorporated into the front elevation.

All exterior colors shall be of an earth tone and shall blend with the nei; borhood.

All roof finish materials shall be tile or architectural grade asphalt shingle with a minimum
30 year warranty.

Parking

Each home shall have a standard two car garage minimum.

Placement of Principal Buildings

Where possible, principal buildings will be off ¢ ter providing for a wider side yard for
greater access to rear yard.




Exhibit D (cont.)

Second Amended Develo nent Agreement Special Development Standards

Placement of principal Buildings /~~=*?

Placement of all future principal buildings up-gradient of the proposed eight-mile drainage
easement, as shown on Exhibit B, will have the bottom of the finished floor elevation set
two (2) feet higher than the back of curb elevation as measured at the front lot line
adjacent to the street of record.




Agenda Item V.A.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for the vacation
of 5’ of the existing 10’ public utility and drainage easement along the southwesterly
lot line, parcel referred to as APN 001-61]J-028, filed by Koinonia Construction and
processed as Vacation No. 4-18, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

2. Meeting Date: December 18, 2018
Agenda Category: PETITION

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes
5. Background Information: The applicant has requested a vacation of half of the
existing easement due to the irregularity of the parcel shape and setbacks
requirements. CL
6. Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A
7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required
8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, map, and Staff memo
9. Recommended Motion: Accept the petition for vacation and direct Staff to commence

the vacation process by referring the matter to the Planning Commission.
10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
H. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Council Action:

13. Agenda Distribution: Koinonia Construction LL.C
207 Brookwood Drive
Elko, NV 89801

Carter Engineering
Lanacarter@live.com

Created on 12/11/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1







VACATION 4-18
Koinonia Construction
APN: 001-61J-028

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-61J-028

PARCEL SIZE: 6,434 square feet

EXISTING ZONING: (R1) Single Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density
EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped, Copper Trails Unit 2 Subdivision
BACKGROUND:

1. The parcel was created with approval of Final Map for the Copper Trail Unit 2
Subdivision as approved and recorded October 11, 2017, File No. 731523.

2. The parcel is an irregular shaped parcel.

3. A 10’ Public Utility Easement was created along all rear lot lines on the Final Map, a 5’
easement along all interior lot lines and 7.5° easement along the front lot line. As defined
in Elko City Code 3-2-2, the lot line parallel to the easement, would not be considered a
rear lot line as it develops because of the irregular shaped lot and instead it would be
considered an interior side yard lot line. Interior side yard lot line easements are normally
5’ in width which the applicant is proposing to leave remaining in the existing easement.

4. The surrounding area is partially developed with residential land use.

The total area being considered for vacation is approximately 592 SF.

N

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: R1- Residential / Developed
East: R1- Residential / Developed
South: R- Residential / Developed
West: R1- Residential / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is currently undeveloped.
The property can be accessed from Copper Trail

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

City of Elko Code — Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts

Page 2 of 3




VACATION 4-18
Koinonia Construction
APN: 001-61J-028

City of Elko Code — Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures

MASTER PLAN — Land Use:
I. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows a portion of the area as Medium Density
Residential.
2. RI- Single Family Residential Zoning District is listed as a corresponding zoning district
for Medium Density

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component.

nMACTER PLAN - Transport-+-~n:

1. The area will be accessed from Copper Trail.
2. The vacation does not affect the existing right-of-way.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation component.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

e The area is located outside the Redevelopment Area.

E‘INI\ l\Y[;S

e The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use
Component

e The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan
Transportation component

e The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

e The proposed vacation is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5(B) and 8-7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the City Council forward this item to the Planning Commission for further
consideration.

Page 3 of 3













Agenda Item V.B.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Consideration of a request from Ms. Callie Tregidga to hold the “Relay for
Life” Event in the Elko Main City Park (area 10) on May 18" and 19', 2019,
including the extension of the curfew from 11:00 P.M. on May 18" until 8:00 A.M.
on May 19" and authorization to park one (1) RV Trailer overnight, and matter

related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018 Special Session

Agenda Category: PETITION

Time Required: § Minutes

Background Information: A letter from Callie Tregidga, Director of Operations,

Hilton Garden Inn, has been placed in your packet for your review. CC

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information:
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
Prepared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 12/12/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet

Page 1 of 1




From: Callie Tregidga <Callie Trepidpa@Hilton.com>
Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2018 1:36 PM

To: Kim Wilkinson <kwilkinson@elkocityny gov>

Cc: Angela West <awest@roi-mca.com>

Subject: Relay For Life

Hi Kim,

We would like to move Relay for Life to the Elko City Park area 10. We would like to ask to go past
closing, which is 11pm and end at 8am. We would be playing music throughout the night as well. We
would also like to ask permission to park 1 RV trailer overnight.

Kind Regards,

Callie Tregidgo
Director of Operations
775-777-1200

Callie tregidga@hilton.com

Hilton Garden Inn




Agenda Item V.C.

1.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 60-day Temporary Retail Liquor
License and issue a Regular Retail Liquor License, to Sartini Gaming LL.C / Sean T.
Higgins, DBA Gold Bar, located at 3600 West Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018
Agenda Category: PETITION
Time Required: S Minutes

Background Information: N/A

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A
Recommended Motion: Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 60-day Temporary
Retail Liquor License and issue a Regular Retail Liquor License, to Sartini Gaming
LLC /Sean T. Higgins, DBA Gold Bar, located at 3600 West Idaho Street, Elko, NV
89801.
Prepared By: Police Chief Ben Reed, Jr.
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:
Council Agenda Distribution: Sean T. Higgins
6595 S Jones Blvd
Las Vegas, NV 89118

shiggeins @ gsoldenent.com

Created on 12/13/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet , Page 1 of 1




.

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBIJECT:

Ben Reed, Jr.
O POLICE DEPARTMFNT Police Chief

Elko, Nevada 89801
775.777.7310
775.738.1415 Fax
www.elkocity.com

é — -
é 1448 Silver Street

December 11, 2018
Curtis Calder, City Manager

Ben Reed. Jr., Police Chief W“\

Reta Liquor License Application in the name of Gold Bar, located at 3600 West Idaho
Street, Elko, Nevada 89801

On October 30, 2018, Sean T. Higgins made application for a Retail Liquor License in the name of
Gold Bar, located at the above address.

Mr. Higgins has successfully completed the required background investigation.

I am requesting the Elko City Council approve the request for a Retail Liquor License Application in
the name of Gold Bar, located at 3600 West Idaho Street, Elko. Nevada 89801.

BR/tle

CC: Mayor Chris Johnson




Agenda ltem VILA.

10.

1.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: First reading for Ordinance 837, an Amendment to Title 4, Chapter 9 of the
Elko City Code entitled “Prostitution,” and matters related thereto.” FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018

Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARING
Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: Council initiated Staff to make changes to City Code Title
4, Chapter 9, “Prostitution,” as well as to complete a business impact statement on
October 23, 2018. On December 11, 2018 council determined there was a direct and
significant impact to businesses due to the proposed rule fee structure (pursuant to
NRS 237.080). Furthermore, council approved the business impact statement
subject to the proposed fee structure being changed to $5000 per applicant for the
application, $6500 for a new license, and $6500 for an annual renewal of the brothel
license. Today is the first reading of the ordinance. If council approves first reading,
the next meeting will include the second reading of the ordinance as well as the
resolution outlining the revised fee structure. KW

Budget Information: N/A
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: See above
Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance No. 837
Recommended Motion: Approve Ordinance No. 837, amendment to Title 4, Chapter
9 of the Elko City Code entitled ‘“Prostitution 1”, initiate the business impact
statement process, and then refer the matter for second reading.
Prepared By: Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk; Chief Ben Reed
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 12/13/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 0of 1







4-9-1: PRIVILEGE LICENSE:

ions

4-9-2: PROSTITUTION NOT AN OFFENSE OR NUISANCE:

The operation of z vithin the city in accordance with the
provisions of this cnapter aoes not constitute a puplic nuisance or an offense to public decency.

4-9-3: UNLAWFUL UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS:

A. ltis unlawful for anv nerson firm or cornoration tc Keep, own or
operate of any descripuon wiunn e ciy, except as
providea mn s cnapuer.

B. Itis unlawful for any owne sartender, managel

licensed brothel to allow any person 10 practice prostitution or t

or to procure any person for the purpose of prostitution witnin tne city, except witnin the
premises of a licensed brothel and within the boundaries of the restricted commercial district as
set forth in the city zoning code. There will be no "out date shall
not be hired from a brothel for the purpose of prostitution to accompany a customer outsiae the
brothel at which the s employed. All soliciting of prostitution and acts of prostitution
must take place insiae ine premises of a licensed brothel.

C. Inthe trial of any case arising under the nrovicinns of sithsertion A or B of this section,
evidence of general reputation shall be avidence as to the question of
the ill fame of any and to the quesuon or tne 1 tame or any person alleged to be
practicing prostituton.

4-9-4: DEFINITIONS:

As used in this chapter, the following words will be defined as follows:

APPLICANT: Any person applying to the icense under the provision of this chapter,
together with all persons listed in subsec and B of this chapter.

BOARD: The city council of the city of Elko.

BROTHEL: A














































business days in accordance with the Nevada open meeting law. The proceedings thereafter
shall be held in accordance with sectior of this chapter.

4-9-18: LICENSE NOT TRANSF RABLE:

All licenses granted under this chapter shall be ions conducted on the property
described in the application and nc h >r moved without a new license
application and approval.

4-9-19: DEATH OR RESIGNATION OF PERSON LISTED ON LICENSE:

ncense, provigea, nowever, mnat at ine ume any sucn wemporary license IS Issuea py e Cily

4-9-20: CRIMINAL PENALTY:

Any person who violates any provision of this chapter or of this code, amended by this chapter,
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not to exceed
one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or by imprisonment for a term not to exceed six (6) months, or
by both fine and imprisonment.

4-9-21: SEPARABILITY:

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this chapter is for any reason
held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions hereof.

Section 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but
only to the extent of such conflict

Section 3: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall for any reason
be held to be invalid, unenforceable, or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the
invalidity, unenforceability or provision shall not affect any remaining provisions of this
ordinance.

Section 4: Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its passage

17




in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one
publication.

Section 5: This Ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section 4
PASSED AND ADOPTED this -—-day of ----, 2018 by the foliowing vote of the Elko City Council.

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
APPROVED this __ day of , 2018 .
CITY OF ELKO
BY:
CHRIS JOHNSON, Mayor
ATTEST:

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk

18




Agenda Item VL.B.

woos

10.
1.
12.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, considera »n, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 30-18, a
resolution of the Elko City Council adopting a change in zoning district boundaries
from C- General Commercial and GI- General Industrial to R-Single Family and
Multiple Family Residential approximately .287 acres of property located generally
north of the intersection of 9" Street and River Street, filed by Donald Carlson and
Valvet Carlson, and processed as Rezone No. 7-18, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: December 18, 2018
Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARING
Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information: The Planning Commission considered the subject zone
change request on December 4, 2018 and took action to forward a recommendation

to City Council to adopt a resolution which conditionally approves Rezone No. 7-18.
CL

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Resolution, P.C. action report, Staff memos and
related correspondence

Recommended Motion: A pt Resolution No. 30-18 as recommended by the Planning
Commission

Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission

Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: High Desert Engineering

640 Idaho Street

Elko, NV 89801

tehallew (< fronticrnet.net

Do1 Id Carlson Valvet Carlson
107 Court Street 925 River Street
Elko, NV 89801 Elko, NV 89801

Created on 12/11/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



Upon introduction and motion by Councilman _ ____and seconded by
Councilman the following Resolution and Order was passed and adopted:

CITY OF ELKO
ESOLUTION NO. 30-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE ELKO CITY COUNCIL
ADOPTING A CHANGE IN ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARIES

WHEREAS, the Elko City Council has conducted a public hearing in accordance with Nevada
Revised Statutes, Section 278.260 and the Elko City Code, Section 3-2-21(C), and

WHEREAS, the Elko City Council has received and reviewed the application submitted by
Donald and Valvet Carlson (“petitioners™), together with any public input, supporting data and
evidence, and the previous action taken by the Planning Commission pertaining to Rezone
Application No. 7-18.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE ELKO CITY COUNCIL
that Rezone Application No. 5-18, involving a change in zoning from C (General Commercial)
and GI (General Industrial) to R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) involving
approximately 0.287 acres of property located generally on the north corner of the intersection of
9th Street and River Street more ¢ ticularly described in Exhibit A and shown on the map at
Exhibit B, each attached hereto, and each incorporated herein by reference, is hereby adopted,
subject to the following conditions agreed to by the petitioners:

1. Variance applications 11-18, 12-18 and 13-18 are approved and all the conditions are
satisfied.

2. Parcel Map 10-18 be approved and recorded with Elko County Recorder.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that this Resolution shall not be signed and
recorded until the conditions are satisfied.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that upon satisfaction of the conditions stated
herein, this Resolution shall be signed by the Mayor and attested to by the City Clerk.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___day of ,2018.

CITY OF ELKO

By:

CHRIS JOHNSON, MAYOR

Page 1 of 2 Res. 30-18




ATTEST:

KELLY C. WOOLDRIDGE, CITY CLERK
VOTE:

AYES:

NAYS:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Page 2 of 2 Res. 30-18




RECEIVED
ST
EXHIBIT “A”
Donald & Valvet Carlson
Application for Zone Change
November 9, 2018

Lots 13-17 of Block 12 as shown on the map of Ballou’s Addition to the Town of Elko, Nevada,

recorded in the office of the llko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, at file number 2.

|

HIGH DESERT Engineering, LLC 640 Idaho Street
Thomas C. Ballew Elko, NV 89801
Nevada P.1.S. 5072 page 1 of 1 (775) 738-4033







(X oy ]
29 O@ "% ]& (

PROJECT
LOCATION

RECEIVED

AREA MAP TO ACCOMPANY
APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE

P—, |
HIGH 7«
DESERT
ENGINEERING | C—-COMMERCIAL & GI—GENERAL INDUSTRIAL
% TO R—SINGLE & MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

BY

INALD CARLSON & VALVET CARLSON










Vs

H
(e Lo

Cathy Laughlin} City Planj‘er

),

Attest:
(\jd oy Ay o [T
Shelby Archu@ta. Planning Technician

CC:  Applicant
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk



YPNO
001356004
001356005
001359017
001364001
001365013
001356006
001356007
1358004
001367001
001367002
001359013
001359010
001359014
001359016
001364005
001365001
001364007
001364006
1356002
001364003
001359006
001359015
001364004
001356008
001364002
001353007
001368006
001361010
001361007
001356003
001365011
001361012

&

/p\e?pne - !% CQYISOH

PANAME PMADD1
BEAR, ALLIETTR

BLAIR, WADE L

COLLIN, LESLEY

DAYTON, BRUCE & CINDYTR

DURAN, YOLANDA

ELKO CO ASSOC FOR RETARDED CHIL JI

ELKO CO ASSOC FOR RETARDED CHIL -*’PC .
ELKO CO ASSOC FQR RET; DED CHIL, D

ELKO, CC NTY OF j‘pC ) C/0 co!
ELKO, CC NTY OF C/0 PUI

FELIX, RAUL PRADO & MARIA
FLORES, ANTONIO M & GUADALUPE
FLORES, RAMON & SOCORRO T% i ~
FLORES, RAMON & SOCORRO T" (P ~
HEIMER, YOHON

JUI EN, EVERETT H & PATTY A

LARA, FRANCISCO J

MYRICK, MARY C

NERI, EDUARDO

NEW DEAL PROPERTIES LLC
NICHOLS, GARY G TR ET AL

ROBLES, RAMIRO & MARINA

RUBY MOUNTAIN PAWN

RUBY MOUNTAIN RESOURCE CENTER
RUIZ, PEDRO & EVANGELINA

SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO

TELLERIA, JOSE

TIERRA GROUP HOLDINGS LLC
URIARTE FAMILY INVESTMENTS LLC
VELAZQUEZ, AMANDA

WENSVEEN, FRANK

WESTWOOD, GARY

Mouled

Y SHOPS
> WORKS BUILDING

C/O MICHAEL VERNON

PMADD?2

PO BOX 1856

892 SILVER ST

3120 S BREEZE DR

PO BOX 995

1037 RIVER ST

PO BOX 1708

PO BOX 1708

PO BOX 1708

540 COURT ST

540 COURT ST

813 DOUGLAS ST

809 DOUGLAS ST

821 DOUGLASST #6
“#6

993 RIVER ST

168 10TH ST

955 RIVER ST

PO BOX 993

830 SILVER ST

9310 SW 26TH AVE

886 RIVER ST

823 DOUGLAS ST

185 10TH ST

829 RIVER ST

327 W FIR ST

PO BOX 10100

220 RIVER ST

1746 COLE BLVD STE 130

245 10TH ST

840 SILVER ST

114 7TH AVE W

1940 IDAHO ST

- CC

PMCTST
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
MAGNA UT
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
/R
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV

PORTLAND OR

ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
ELKO NV
RENO NV
ELKO NV

LAKEWOOD CO

ELKO NV
ELKO NV
JEROME ID
ELKO NV

PZIP

89803-1856
89801-3838
84044-1804
89803-0995
89801-3930
89803-1708
89803-1708
89803-1708
89801-3515
89801-3715
89801-3865
89801-3865
89801-3865
§ 1 565
89801-3940
89801-3958
89801-3940
89803 0993
89801-3838
97219-5502
85801-3842
89801-3865
89801-3902
8§9801-3841
89801-2930
89520-0024
89801-3647
80401-3208
89801-3504
89801-3838
83338-1802
89801-2629




NOTICE OF PUBLIC ] IARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City
Council will conduct a series of public hearings on
Tuesday, December 18, 2018 beginning at 5:30 P.M.
P.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko,
Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input
and testimony on these matters uni r constderation in
person, by writing, or by representative.

The specific item to be considered under public hearing
format is:

Rezone 7-18, having a hearing as Res  1tion 30-18, filed by
Donald and Valvet Carlson for a change in zoning from C
(General Commercial) and GI (General Industrial) to R
(Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential),
approximately 0.287 acres of propertv. specifically APN 001-
364-009, 001-364-010, and 001-364-0  located generally on
the north corner of the intersection of 9th Street and River
Street, more particularly described as:

Lots 13-17 of Block 12 as shown on the map of Ballou’s
Addition to the Town of Elko, Nevada, recorded in the office
of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, at File No. 2.
The intent of the zone change is to match the zone to the use
of the parcels.

Additional information concerning this item may be
obtained by contacting the Elko City Planning
Department at (775) 777-7160.

ELKO CITY COUNCIL















By My Signature below:

| consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

1 object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

I acknowledge that submission of this applicatic does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Com ission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required ermits and/or licenses.

| acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

I have ¢ efully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Applicant/ / ient [ :;’z LT e, )
(Please print or type)

S P -r
Y A A A A

Street Address or 0. Box

ey

Mailing Address

, o e
AR LA P A A

City, State, Zip Code

Phone Number: ¢ '/ = Y T8 s 0

Email address:

SIGNATURE: [/ pos /o A Lre D -

FOR OFFICEUSE O .Y

File No.: ] ~ @ Date Filed: || ,}13/18 Fee Pai i@b_ﬁv** 7d53

Revised 1/24/18 Page 3



	Agenda
	I.D WRF Generator Final Acceptance
	Parrado Partnerns LP Final Plat
	III.A I-80 Sewer Special Reimbursement Agreement
	III.B. Revocable Permit Elite Storage 
	Ordinane 838 Copper Trails LLC Development Agreement
	V.A Vacation Koinonia Construction
	V.B. Relay for Life
	V.C. Temp Liquor Gold Bar
	VI.A. Ordinance 837 1st Reading Brothel License
	VI.B.  Resolution 30-18



